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About This Report  
 

The purpose of this Annual Report is to provide a range of stakeholders and interested readers with 
an understanding of the operations and performance of the Northern Territory Auditor-General’s 
Office (the Office) for the year ended 30 June 2014. 

The Office is exempt from the normal requirements to submit an annual report to the Legislative 
Assembly.  However, the preparation and delivery of a document such as this offers the opportunity 
to highlight the operations and performance of the Office for the year to interested parties. 

As well as reporting on the corporate performance 
for the past year, the report looks to the year 
ahead.  The cost of preparing this report is nominal 
as it was prepared completely in-house with no 
marketing and nominal printing costs.   

This report is not a report on the results of audits 
conducted, as this information is tabled separately 
in Parliament.   

Annual reports, together with details of other 
publications, are available on our web site at 
http://www.nt.gov.au/ago/.
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Auditor-General’s Forward 

Introduction 

It is my pleasure to present my first annual report as Auditor-General.  I assumed the role of Auditor-
General in September 2014 following the conclusion of the term of office of Frank McGuiness.  Sue 
Cooper acted in the role until my appointment and I take this opportunity to acknowledge the 
contribution of both Frank and Sue to the Office during their periods of appointment as Auditor-
General and Acting Auditor-General respectively.   

Highlights of 2014 

In preparation for a change of Auditor-General, staff of the Northern Territory Auditor-General’s 
Office undertook a range of internal projects to facilitate the change.  These included: 

• Revising a range of internal policies 
• Updating the Audit Handbook and Manual 
• Completion and audit of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 
• Continuing to implement internal processes supporting a ‘paperless office’ environment 
• Coordinating the tender and award of the contracts relating to the delivery of outsourced 

audit services.  

I would like to place on record my appreciation to Frank and each staff member of the Office for the 
commitment to facilitating a smooth transition between Auditors-General.  

The Office outsources its audit work to contracted Authorised Audit firms that have an established 
local presence.  Contracts are for a three year period and 2014 was the final calendar year under the 
existing contract.  Responses to tenders were sought in May 2014, with the Office undertaking 
tender assessment and contract award processes during July and August.  The outcomes of the 
tender were announced in August 2014 with the new contracts commencing from 1 January 2015. 

The Year Ahead 

A strategic planning workshop was recently held with all Office personnel leading to the 
development of the Office’s Strategic Plan 2015 – 2019 which identifies the following objectives for 
our output groups: 

• Audit and Review - To achieve a high level of professional audit services to ensure that 
Australian Standards are achieved within the field of audit through training and 
development both internally and to the sector. 

• Corporate Services - Our corporate services provide strategic advice and high quality, 
professional services and support to the agency and its stakeholders to enable the efficient 
and effective delivery of the audit program. 
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Key issues impacting our ability to meet the Office’s objectives include:  

• Responding to machinery of government changes efficiently and effectively 
• Establishment of a performance management system audit methodology and delivery of 

performance management system audits 
• Availability of contemporary and relevant audit training 
• Access to modern auditing techniques and supporting information technology 
• Continued reengineering of internal processes to facilitate the efficient and economic 

delivery of services 
• The introduction of financial measures to support flexible and economical delivery of 

services to audited entities.  

In conclusion, I would like to thank the staff of the Office and my Authorised Auditors for the 
successful delivery of audit services during the year ended 30 June 2014. 

 

 

Julie Crisp 

Auditor-General 

March 2015  
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Our Organisation 
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History of the Northern Territory Auditor-General’s Office 
1978 - 1982 

On 5 July 1978, during the first year of self-government, the Administrator for the Northern Territory 
(NT) appointed the Auditor-General for the Commonwealth of Australia to be the Auditor-General 
for the NT.   

This was an interim arrangement until the appointment of the NT Auditor-General could be 
facilitated under section 38 of the then Financial Administration and Audit Act.   

The Commonwealth maintained a branch of the Audit Office in Darwin with approximately 16 
employees including 12 professional auditors providing audit services.  This arrangement was in 
place until it was possible to hand over audit services to the NT upon the establishment of a 
separate Office.   During this period employee numbers ranged between 16 and 22. 

Figure 1 represents an extract from a report to Parliament (D.R. Steele Craik, 1979) highlighting two 
staffing challenges that remain unchanged.  The first is the difficulty experienced by audit firms 
when recruiting suitably skilled resources to Darwin.  The second is the reference to the need to 
obtain short-term, specific audit skills such computer specialist audit skills from interstate.   

In 1981, following a review by the Commonwealth, the NT Government was advised of the intent of 
the Commonwealth to facilitate the transfer of audit services from the Commonwealth to the NT 
and for the Commonwealth to formally withdraw services during the 1981-82 period. 

1982 – Current 

The first resident Auditor-General was appointed by the Administrator in 1982.  Graham Carpenter 
was instrumental in setting up the administration and audit direction for the new audit Office and 
developing the model for accessing audit services in the NT which is still in use today.  The 
outsourced model, which utilises private sector Authorised Auditors to deliver audit services to the 
Office, addressed both the difficulty faced by the Office in attracting and retaining suitable audit 
skills and the intent of the Government of the day to involve private sector audit firms with all 
aspects of public sector auditing.      

Up to the period of 1984-85, reports to parliament were delivered annually, as at 30 June of that 
reporting period.  The 1986 period saw the annual reports evolve into three separate reports.   The 
first, at the close of March, presented the results of prescribed statutory corporation audits.  The 
second report was the Auditor-General’s report for the year and the third represented the Auditor-
General’s report on the Treasurer’s Annual Financial Statements (TAFS).  This reporting model was in 
place for some time until it evolved to the present practice whereby the Office now tables two 
reports detailing audits completed in the first half and then the second half of the audit work 
program.  These reports are generally issued around February and August.  On occasion, an ad-hoc 
report is tabled, usually regarding a specific audit or issue across government.  

The Financial Administration and Audit Act was repealed in 1995 and replaced by the Financial 
Management Act and the Audit Act of that same year.  The separation of the audit function assisted 
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the Auditor-General’s independence objectives.  Under the terms of the Financial Administration 
and Audit Act 1978, the Auditor-General was appointed as an independent officer, separate from 
the Executive of Government on a term basis as agreed with the Administrator.  These appointments 
were limited by the age of the Auditor-General, in that the appointment could be held until that 
person attained the age of 65.  With the introduction of the Audit Act in 1995, the term of 
appointment was limited to 7 years. The Audit Act was reviewed in 2011 and one of the 
amendments was to the term of appointment of the Auditor-General which changed from a 
maximum term of 7 years, to two terms of 5 years with a maximum of 10 years.   A list of Auditors-
General during the years of the Office’s existence is shown at Figure 2. 

Another legislative impact on the Auditor-General was the introduction of the Public Information 
Act.  This Act was responsible for providing the Auditor-General with additional responsibilities with 
regard to the regulation of public information and the ability to investigate any complaints of 
breaches of this Act.  Referrals against this legislation are reported within the Auditor-General’s 
reports to Parliament. 

Established staffing numbers of the Office fluctuated between 4 and 6 employees with the present 
formal staff establishment threshold of 4.5 full time equivalent employees (FTE).  This structure 
allowed for one Auditor-General, two Principal Auditors with the remaining positions providing 
administrative support to the Office.  Currently the Business Manager and Records Officer are full 
time resulting in an actual FTE of 5.0. 

Until 2006, the Office was funded through application of appropriation following which a limited 
cost-recovery basis was introduced, allowing the Office to supplement its output revenue with the 
recovery of professional fees on audits conducted on organisations that are not agencies for the 
purpose of the Financial Management Act.   

In order to fulfil the requirements of the Audit Act, and to contribute meaningfully to enhanced 
performance reporting, the Office has developed and is implementing a framework for auditing 
within the scope of Performance Management System Audits in the public sector.   

The in-house development relating to performance auditing strengthens the ability of the Office to 
provide assurance on the efficiencies and effectiveness of government systems and enable the 
Office to contribute to cross-jurisdictional audits in collaboration with other public sector Audit 
Offices.    
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1. Extract from one of the first Reports of the Auditor-General in 1979, to Parliament. 
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Auditors-General 

2. 
Timeline of Auditors-General in the Northern Territory, 1978 to current  

 

  



 
 

 

 

13 2013-14 Annual Report 

The Role of the NT Auditor-General 
The role of the Auditor-General is established in section 13 of the Audit Act.  The Act requires the 
Auditor-General to audit the Public Account and other accounts (including the accounts of a 
Territory controlled entity) in such manner as he or she thinks fit having regard to the character and 
effectiveness of internal control and recognised professional standards and practices.  The Act also 
permits the Auditor-General to conduct audits of performance management systems and requires 
the Auditor-General to carry out audits as may be directed by the Minister, either generally or 
specifically, by an instrument in writing.  

The Auditor-General’s focus areas reflect the mandate under the Audit Act and are summarised as: 

• Accountability – have entities given full and accurate accounts of their activities and of their 
compliance with the Legislative Assembly’s intent through the annual reporting cycle and are 
governance and management arrangements suitable to ensure accountability? 

• Authority – have activities, resourcing and accountability requirements been undertaken within 
the authority granted by the Legislative Assembly? 

• Probity and Financial Prudence – are entities meeting parliamentary and public expectations of 
an appropriate standard of behaviour in the public sector? 

In the discharging of functions under the Act, the Auditor-General is assisted by the NT Auditor-
General’s Office, an Agency established pursuant to the provisions of the Financial Management Act.  
Section 17 of the Audit Act permits the Auditor-General to appoint in writing, a person to be an 
Authorised Auditor for the purpose of delivering audit services.  

The Auditor-General also has obligations under the Public Information Act which allows Members of 
the Legislative Assembly to refer perceived breaches of that Act to the Auditor-General for opinion.  
The Auditor-General is a referral body under the Public Interest Disclosure Act which permits the 
Commissioner for Public Interest Disclosures to refer a public interest disclosure to a number of 
specified office holders.  The Auditor-General also has a statutory role with the Electoral Commission 
in assisting with the determination of electoral boundaries.   

The Auditor-General cannot investigate criminal matters.  If such a matter is brought to the attention 
of the Auditor-General it is automatically passed to the police. 

The Auditor-General does not investigate administrative malpractice by government agencies that 
affect an individual.  Such matters are the mandate of the Ombudsman.  The Auditor-General can 
however investigate administrative matters if they are systemic and significant in value or impact.   

Unlike some jurisdictions, the NT Auditor-General does not have a mandate to audit individual 
school council accounts or the annual financial statements of local government entities. 

Audits are conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards.  These standards are 
‘principles based’ in regard to use of judgment but are directive on some matters including the 
content of audit opinions.  Users may, as a result, find the prescriptive format of the audit opinion 
restricts the usefulness of audit reporting.  Where a serious matter cannot be reflected in the audit 
opinion, the Auditor-General may use a formal report to Parliament to highlight the concern.  
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The Independence of the NT Auditor-General 
Section 9 of the Audit Act, provides for the independence of the Auditor-General from the Legislative 
Assembly, the Parliament or the Executive in the NT thus the Auditor-General is appointed by the 
Administrator and is deemed to be an officer of the Crown.  The Auditor-General’s appointment will 
cease immediately if Section 9 is breached.    

Section 12A requires the Auditor-General to ensure independence to maintain the integrity of the 
work that is conducted.  This ensures that this position is not actually, or perceived to be, influenced 
by anyone; that the work conducted is independent, impartial and conducted within the public 
interest.  

The Act requires the Auditor-General to submit a report to the Legislative Assembly at least once in 
each year.  This process establishes a relationship between the Legislative Assembly and the Auditor-
General, through the activities of the Public Accounts Committee.  The Committee has, as part of its 
role, the scrutiny of Auditor-Generals’ reports.  In effect the Committee is the Auditor-General’s 
principal point of access to the Legislative Assembly. 

By convention, the Auditor-General will not comment upon government policy as this risks 
politicising the position and diminishing the perceived independence.  However, the Auditor-General 
can assess whether government policy has been effectively implemented. 

The Act also provides for the strategic review of the Auditor-General’s office under section 26.  This 
provision ensures that the Office is subject to external review every three years.  The last review was 
conducted by Mr. David Francis of Bentleys Limited (SA) in 2012 with the 2009 review conducted by 
Mr. John Viljoen of the Audit Office of NSW.  The next scheduled review will occur in the 2015 
calendar year.  All reports produced for Parliament are available from the NT Auditor-General’s 
Office website1 and have been tabled in Parliament.  

 

  

                                                           

1 http://www.nt.gov.au/ago/publications.html  

http://www.nt.gov.au/ago/publications.html
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About the Northern Territory Auditor-General’s Office 
In the discharging of functions under the Act, the Auditor-General is assisted by the NT Auditor-
General’s Office, an Agency established pursuant to the provisions of the Financial Management Act 
and the Public Sector Employment Act.   The Office is subject to the same legislative requirements 
that apply to other NT Public Service Agencies.  Thus while the Auditor-General may be independent 
in terms of performing the functions set down under the Audit Act, he or she is answerable to the 
Chief Minister for the stewardship of the public resources provided to the Office. 

The Office has five positions, three of which are primarily concerned with the audit function and two 
positions that provide administrative services supporting the Office and its clients.  Figure 3 below 
represents the organisational structure of the agency.    

The majority of the Office’s audit field work is conducted by its private sector Authorised Auditors, 
with the Auditor-General and Principal Auditors of the Office involved in planning, preparation of 
guidelines for audit assignments, information support, administering the contracts with private 
sector firms and conducting some audits in-house. 

The corporate services function is responsible for managing the human resources, information 
technology, records management, Work Health Safety, financial and general services including fleet 
and travel.   

Under Section 27 of the Audit Act, the accounts of the Office are subject to annual audit.  To 
maintain independence, an auditor is appointed that is not an Authorised Auditor contracted to 
provide audit services to the Office.  The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014, were 
audited in August by Bentley’s Ltd (SA).  A copy of the audited financial statements is included at 
Appendix A.  The audited financial statements were tabled in Parliament during the September 2014 
sittings. 

3. Organisational Chart: 
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Operating Structure 
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Corporate Governance 

Our Governance Framework 
Good corporate governance is intended to assist an organisation to achieve its outcomes and 
obligations through planning, decision-making and risk management.  The Office’s corporate 
governance framework is intended to ensure the efficient use of resources, compliance with 
statutory and other external requirements, adherence to sound administrative and financial 
management practices and provides the framework within which the Auditor-General is 
accountable:  

• to the Legislative Assembly for the discharge of the responsibilities allocated under the Audit 
Act, including the ways by which the strategies and goals of the Office are set, promoted and 
achieved 

• to the Chief Minister for the stewardship of resources entrusted to the Office. 

These obligations are discharged through: 

• Internal 
o A strategic planning workshop was recently undertaken involving all 

staff members within the Office. 
o Following development of the strategic plan, a strategic risk 

identification and mitigation workshop assists in identifying risks and 
establishing controls to support the efficient, effective and 
economical delivery of services from the Office. 

• Service Delivery / External 
o The audit program is established for two six month periods, January 

to June and July to December.  The Auditor-General, Principal 
Auditors and Authorised Auditors resolve any conflicts of interest that 
may impact the allocation of work.  The audit program is then 
finalised and communicated to all stakeholders. 

 
• Internal 

o Due to the small size of the Office, weekly meetings are held with all 
members to discuss the progression of the audit program (all audit 
areas) and matters relating to finance, administration, work health 
and safety and human resources. 

o Authorised Auditors submit a weekly progress report to the Principal 
Auditor to enable monitoring of progress against finance and time 
budgets for each engagement. 

o Principal Auditors undertaking in-house audits hold a weekly one-on-
one meeting with the Auditor-General. 

o The Office Administrator presents weekly financial reports to the 
Auditor-General. Variances are discussed and action taken where 
required. 

o Policies, procedures and manuals are updated in accordance with 
established timetables or if required as a result of legislative change. 

 



 
 

 

• External 
o The annual financial statements of the Office are subject to 

independent audit by an auditor appointed by the Administrator.  
o Section 26 of the Audit Act requires a strategic review of the Office to 

be conducted at least once every three years.  The terms of reference 
and the appointment of the reviewer are recommended by the Chief 
Minister to the Administrator, after consultation with the Public 
Accounts Committee and the Auditor General.  The last review was 
conducted in October 2012 and was tabled in Parliament on 6 
December 2012.  A copy of the review can be accessed through the 
publications on the Office’s website. The next strategic review is 
scheduled to be conducted during the 2015 calendar year. 

 
• External Reporting: 

o Submission of reports to the Legislative Assembly each year, setting 
out the results of audits, together with any observations that may be 
relevant. 

o Annual financial reporting.  The audited annual financial reports of 
the Office are tabled to the Legislative Assembly. An unqualified audit 
opinion was issued on the Office’s financial statements for the year 
ended 30 June 2014. The financial statements are included at 
Appendix A to this report.   

• Internal Reporting: 
o Weekly progress reports are prepared on the status of each audit task 

against the estimated time and cost.   
o Weekly financial reports are prepared showing actual financial results 

compared to budget and variance analysis.  
 

• External Communication 
o Appearances by the Auditor-General before the Public Accounts 

Committee during which the Committee has the opportunity to 
question the Auditor-General and staff about the content of reports 
to the Legislative Assembly, and current and planned audits. 

o Annual appearances before the Estimates Committee during which 
the Committee has the opportunity to question the Auditor-General 
about the activities of the Office. 

o Regular status updates and exit meetings are held with Authorised 
Auditors and representatives from audited entities. 

o Briefings are held with Authorised Auditors and training provided to 
newly Authorised Auditors. 

o Delivery of management letters and audit reports to audited entities. 
o Communication of the six monthly program of audit tasks to 

Authorised Auditors and audited entities. 
• Internal 

o Staff meetings are held weekly. 
o Weekly progress meetings in relation to in-house audits. 
o There is an “open door” approach within the office which enables 

immediate communication when required. 
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The Performance of Our Authorised Auditors 
Authorised Auditors are appointed under contracts for periods of three years.   2014 was the final 
calendar year under the previous contract.  Responses to tenders were sought in May 2014, with the 
Office undertaking tender assessment and contract award processes during July and August.  The 
outcomes of the process were announced in August 2014 with the contract commencement date of 
1 January 2015. 

Authorised Auditors are subject to annual performance appraisals by the Auditor-General.  As part of 
that process, the Authorised Auditors also provide an assessment of the performance of the Auditor-
General and the Office. 

The Office has issued two manuals that define the working relationship between Authorised 
Auditors and the Office.  These are: 

• the Audit Contract Management Manual which sets out the contractual arrangement 
between the Office and Authorised Auditors, including qualifications and experience for 
appointment, and standard operating procedures; 

• the Audit Handbook that outlines the types of audits that are conducted and the standards 
to be applied when conducting audits. 

The process for the management of audits generally consists of: 

• The issue of Audit Task Assignment forms (ATA’s) and audit guidelines to Authorised 
Auditors by the Office.  These documents set the scope and cost of audit tasks, together with 
guidelines on how the task should be conducted.   

• The provision to the Office of weekly progress reports by Authorised Auditors on the status 
of tasks relative to the completion of the audit. 

• The provision of comments by the Office upon 
review of audit working papers following the 
completion of each audit task. 

• A formal two-way review of performance 
standards achieved by the Authorised Auditors 
and the Office.  This process commences at the 
end of each calendar year and concludes early 
in the following year.  
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Communication Framework 
A communication framework has been developed for the Office that addresses communication 
requirements for stakeholder groups.  The communications framework will be further developed in 
the 2015 financial year to become the basis for regular communication with all stakeholder groups.
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Legislative Compliance  
The Office conducts its audit operations on a day-to-day basis in accordance with the principles of 
the Audit Act.  This is discussed throughout the annual report. 

The Office complies with the provisions of the Information Act throughout the year insofar as that 
Act affected the Office.  Section 49A of the Act exempts the Office from requests for information 
obtained or created as a result of an audit.   Information held by the Office is mainly derived from 
the conduct of audits which is specifically exempted from this disclosure requirement of the 
Information Act.   

During the 2012/13 year, there were six referrals to the Auditor-General within the bounds of the 
Public Information Act and in 2013/14 there were two referrals. 

The administrative function operates within the bounds of the Public Sector Employment and 
Management Act and the Financial Management Act.  There were no identifiable breaches of 
procedure for the reporting periods. 

Under the Public Sector Employment and Management Act, Employment Instructions provide 
direction to agencies on human resource management matters.  Agencies are required to report 
against each instruction in their annual report.   The Office’s performance against each instruction is 
reported in the section entitled Our People.  

The Office incorporates the requirements related to the Employment Instructions within its internal 
policies and processes.  During the reportable period, there were no changes or adjustments to 
positions or any action required against any of these Employment Instructions.   

Induction and team meetings reinforce the principles, values and expectations of working in the 
public service.   Employees are given the opportunity to discuss emerging issues with a view to 
resolving or identifying strategies on either an individual basis or within a team discussion. 
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Future priorities 
Future priorities in relation to corporate governance include: 

• Finalising the strategic risk register and aligning controls with identified risks 
• Development of a communication plan to address the information requirements of all 

stakeholders 
• Updating the website for the Office 
• Reviewing and updating existing policies and procedures. 
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Performance Reporting 

Operational Performance 
The operations of the Office are influenced by increasing costs of delivering quality audits within a 
reducing budget framework.  The application of the outsourced provider model means the Office is 
subject to market forces unlike a fully staffed audit office where costs of providing services are 
established through Government wages policy.  Increasing requirements to meet the Australian 
Auditing Standards significantly affects the costs associated with delivering audit services.  As the 
standards increase in number and diligence, so does the time and cost required to satisfactorily 
meet each audit requirement.  The net effect is an increase in audit hours and cost.   

4. Budget Papers 2013/14 Estimates for yearend 2012/13 for total audits conducted: 

 Actual 
(New) 

Actual 
(Total) 

Budget 
(BP3) 

Estimate 

Statutory audits                 99                 104               92               99  
Other audits                   2                    4               15               14  
Total               101                 108             107             113  

 

Actual (New) results compared to budget estimates show that the audit program met or exceeded 
planned budgeted statutory activity.  Conducting performance management system audits “in-
house” rather than outsourcing has reduced capacity and accordingly actual outputs of other audits 
are considerably less than expected. 

A comprehensive analysis of the Office’s revenue, expenditure and financial sustainability is included 
in the section entitled Financial Results, immediately preceding the financial statements.  

During the 2012-13 period, the Office was given an equity injection of $170,000 which somewhat 
mitigated the end of year result.  

During the 2015 financial year, a full financial analysis will be undertaken by the Office in order to 
review its approved funding base with a view to addressing future deficits. As the availability of 
additional funding for the future is considered to be limited in the predicted economic climate, the 
most likely solution will be for the Office to recover additional funds from audited entities to address 
the shortfall and to enable sufficient appropriation to address the full scope of activities within the 
Audit Act.   

Any further reduction in future audit programs will result in reduced assurance and may impact the 
ability to form an opinion on the Treasurer’s Annual Financial Statements.  The Office’s Audit 
program has, over time, been restricted to undertaking only essential audits to provide the 
Legislative Assembly with assurance over the Public Account.  Within the Office’s three year audit 
plan, there is currently little scope for “ad-hoc” audits or audits required to be conducted in addition 
to the established program.  
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The Office will continue to look to the future and work towards the most desirable funding outcome 
for all stakeholders to ensure that any future adjustments to the budget base adequately support 
the Office’s objectives and expectations of Parliament. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Auditor-General’s Office has two Output Groups against which to report: Audit and Review 
Output Group and Corporate Output Group. 

The objective, intended outcomes and associated outputs of each Output Group are presented on 
the following two pages. 

This section of the report considers the performance of each Output Group against its stated 
objectives. 
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Strategic Plan 
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Output Group: Audit and Review 
The Office conducts a range of audit and other assurance activities on behalf of the Legislative 
Assembly.  During 2013/14, the Office finalised eight audits carried forward from the previous year 
and commenced 125 new audits for the year. Of these, 122 were completed in full with three audits 
being carried into the 2014/15 program.   A total of 18,959 hours of audit activity was delivered of 
which 17,092 hours were committed to the 2013/14 audit program.  External and internal resources 
were employed across three broad classes of audits as shown in in the following graph: 

5. Authorised audit hours by audit type 2006/07 to 2013/14. 

 

 

 

During the 2012/13 reporting period, 49 entities 
were audited by the Office.  In 2013/14, 
following machinery of government changes, this 
figure increased to 62 entities as depicted in the 
accompanying graph.  
 
 

 
  

6. No of agencies/entities audited 2007/08 to 2013/14. 
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Our Audited Entities 
 
7. Table of entities that were subject to audits during 2013/14. 

Aboriginal Areas Protection Authority Department of Treasury & Finance 
Batchelor Institute of Indigenous Tertiary 
Education 

Desert Knowledge Australia 

CDU Amenities Limited Desert Knowledge Foundation Ltd 
Central Australia Hospital Network Government Printing Office 
Charles Darwin University Indigenous Essential Services Pty Ltd 
Charles Darwin University Foundation Jabiru Town Development Authority 
Cobourg Peninsula Sanctuary & Marine Park 
Board 

Land Development Corporation 

Construction Division Legislative Assembly Members' 
Superannuation Fund 

Darwin Bus Service Menzies School of Health Research 
Darwin Port Corporation Nitmiluk (Katherine Gorge) National Park 

Board 
Darwin Waterfront Corporation Northern Territory Electoral Commission 
Data Centre Services Northern Territory Government & Public 

Authorities Employees' Superannuation Fund 
Department of Arts & Museums Northern Territory Grants Commission 
Department of Business Northern Territory Legal Aid Commission 
Department of Children & Families Northern Territory Major Events Company 

Pty Ltd 
Department of Corporate & Information 
Services 

Northern Territory Police Supplementary 
Benefit Scheme 

Department of Correctional Services Northern Territory Police, Fire & Emergency 
Services 

Department of Education Northern Territory Superannuation Office 
Department of Health Northern Territory Treasury Corporation 
Department of Housing NT Build 
Department of Infrastructure NT Fleet 
Department of Land Resource Management NT Home Ownership 
Department of Lands, Planning & the 
Environment 

Office of the Public Trustee for the Northern 
Territory 

Department of Local Government & Regions Parks & Wildlife Commission of the Northern 
Territory 

Department of Mines & Energy Power & Water Corporation 
Department of Primary Industry & Fisheries Surveyors Board of the Northern Territory of 

Australia 
Department of Sport, Recreation & Racing Territory Discoveries 
Department of the Attorney-General & 
Justice 

Territory Insurance Office 

Department of the Chief Minister Territory Wildlife Parks 
Department of the Legislative Assembly Top End Hospital Network 
Department of Transport Tourism NT 
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Expenses incurred for Authorised Auditors as a result of the Office’s outsourcing arrangements with 
private firms providing audit services amounted to $3.085 million compared to $2.994 million for the 
2012/13 year.   

8. Authorised Audit costs (in dollars) compared to the number of new audits purchased, per financial year: 

  2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Cost of audits $’000     2,441     2,467     2,646     2,737     2,911     2,915    2,994     3,085  

Number of audits 102 117 103 109 107 105 101 125 

 Average $ to # of audits          
23,933  

        
21,086  

        
25,685  

        
25,108  

        
27,210  

        
27,760  

        
29,648  

        
24,680  

 

The number of required audits increased significantly during 2014 as a result of machinery of 
government changes.  However, the cost remained relatively similar to the previous year.  There are 
two main reasons for this.  Firstly, some audits demonstrated savings throughout their conduct. 
Secondly, over the last two years, a larger number of audits have been conducted using the Office’s 
resources.  Three audits were conducted “in house” during 
2013/14 and two during the 2012/13 year.  Other audits 
conducted in house during 2013/14 included five selected 
agency audits (refer to the Auditor-General’s Reports to the 
Legislative Assembly for further detail 2 ).  The increased 
conduct of audits in house is in response to the increasing real 
costs affecting the Office’s budget and is a strategy 
implemented to ensure that the overall audit program is 
conducted reasonably within its budget allocation.  The actual 
costs for “in house” audits are included in the total wages for 
the agency.   

Actual audit costs are affected by the nature of the audit, the 
time an audit takes to complete, the composition and 
experience of the audit team assigned the audit, as well as the 
increasing market rates of audit services.  Maintaining costs 
within a reasonable budget has resulted in some audits being conducted in house and other non-
essential audits being deferred.  

 

  

                                                           

2 http://www.nt.gov.au/ago/publications.html 

http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=types of audits&qs=n&form=QBIR&pq=types of audits&sc=8-15&sp=-1&sk=#view=detail&id=04352A19F504E5E1539E22706535B404F62D635A&selectedIndex=106
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Financial Statement Audits 
This class of activity relates to the Auditor-General’s statutory duty to carry out audits of financial 
statements prepared by the Treasurer, statutory bodies, Government Business Divisions and 
Government Owned Corporations.  Also included are audits of funding acquittals prepared by 
agencies, generally for submission to the Commonwealth. 

In 2013/14, a total of 73 financial statement audit task assignments were listed in the database.  Five 
of these were carried forward from the 2012/13 period and 68 new task assignments were issued.  
At year end, only one of the task assignments remained incomplete and this was carried forward 
into the 2014/15 program.  For 2012/13, there were a total of 69 task assignments, 66 of these were 
new and 3 were carried forward from the 2011/12 program.        

9. Number of new financial statement audit task assignments issued: 

 

The number of audit hours allocated to financial statement audits for 2013/14 was 12,726, an 
increase of 269 hours (2%) from the prior year’s 12,457 hours.   

10. Audit hours billed to new financial statement audits: 
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The weighted average cost of providing financial statement assurance for 2013/14 was $163 per 
hour compared to the previous year’s average hourly cost of $165.   Costs of audits are dependent 
on the allocation of hours across the audit professional levels required for the audit, the inclusion of 
supplementary expenses for travel disbursements (related to visiting specialists) together with the 
number of audits and the hours an audit may take to complete.   

11. Weighted average cost for new financial statement audits ($): 

 

The total cost for the 2013/14 year was $2.079 million compared to $2.055 million for the previous 
year.    

12. Cost of undertaking new financial statement audits: 

 

Financial statements audits conducted in 2013/14, (including audits that were rolled over from the 
previous year) gave rise to 74 recommendations being made to agencies, of which 66 (89%), were 
agreed to by agencies.  A further 52 recommendations were followed up with 50 (96%) of these 
being implemented.     

Of the 68 financial statement audits allocated in 2013/14 to be performed, 4 of them involved 
specialist auditor skills.  Two audits were conducted in conjunction with insurance specialists and 2 
were conducted with specialist IT auditors.   
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The involvement of specialist skills affects the weighted average cost of undertaking the audit as 
specialist auditors generally have higher charge-out rates than non-specialist auditors at a 
comparative level.   In addition, there are additional disbursement costs related to travel and 
accommodation as specialist skills are located interstate. 

Financial statement audits lead to two main outputs: 

• An audit report that is addressed to readers of the financial statements.  It provides the 
auditor’s opinion on whether the financial statements fairly reflect the financial 
performance and position of the entity being audited at reporting date.  In cases where the 
Auditor-General is satisfied that the information contained in a set of financial statements is 
reliable, an unqualified opinion is issued.  However, if a material error or omission has been 
identified in the financial statements or if the financial statements depart from Australian 
Accounting Standards, a modified opinion is issued. 
 

• A management report that is addressed to the Board or the Accountable Officer of the 
public sector entity.  The management report sets out any significant issues identified during 
the audit and provides recommendations for improving the entity’s controls, systems and 
processes. 

In 2013/14 there were 51 audit opinions issued and 116 management letters, compared to 48 
opinions and 61 management letters issued during the previous year.   
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Compliance Audits 
The annual financial statements of agencies are not subject to individual audit and thus no audit 
opinion is issued on their annual financial statements.  Agencies’ financial results are consolidated 
within the Treasurer’s Annual Financial Statement which is subject to audit within the Public 
Account.  

In order to form an opinion on the Treasurer’s Annual Financial Statement, agency compliance 
audits are performed by the Auditor-General to establish the extent to which agencies have 
implemented systems and controls to ensure compliance with the prescribed financial management 
and accountability requirements.     

During the 2013/14 year, compliance audit activity utilised 6,196 audit hours, compared to 5,593 
from the previous year.  This represents an increase of 603 hours (11%). 

In 2013/14, 45 compliance audits were recorded in the database.  Two of these were carried forward 
from the previous year and 43 new compliance task assignments were issued, representing an 
increase of approximately 30% from the previous year.  All compliance audit task assignments were 
completed during the 2013/14 program.  For 2012/13 there were 35 task assignments related to 
compliance audits.  Of these, two were carried forward from the previous year. A total of 33 new 
audits were commenced and 31 of these were finalised by year end. 

13. Number of new compliance audits issued: 

 

 

  

 -

 10

 20

 30

 40

 50

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

 34  
 37  

 33   33  

 43  



 
 

 

 

34 2013-14 Annual Report 

14. Audit hours allocated to new compliance audits: 

 
15. Weighted average cost for new compliance audits: 

 

16. Cost of undertaking new compliance dollars: 

 

A significant increase in the number of compliance audits and the costs to complete each audit was 
recorded during the 2013/14 period as a result of the changes to machinery of government which 
saw an increased number of agencies.  The overall cost of compliance audits increased by $90,467 
for the 2013/14 period from the prior year.   The weighted average cost has reduced consistent with 
the financial statement audit costs.   
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Performance Management System Audits 
During the 2013/14 period, two performance audits were conducted, and one was carried forward 
from the previous year.  These audits were conducted by staff of the Office.  In comparison to the 
2012/13 year, there were four performance management systems audits conducted of which two 
were new audits and two were carried over from the previous year.   

The estimated cost of undertaking performance management system audits in 2013/14 was 
$112,447 an estimated average cost per hour of $81. The cost of undertaking performance 
management system audits in the prior year amounted to $31,414 with a weighted average of $162. 

Challenges associated with undertaking the performance management systems audits in-house 
include overreliance on one resource to undertake the audits; limited capacity for multiple layers of 
quality review; reduced access to specialist skills and experience; and a reactionary approach to 
workflow management and scheduling where delays are caused by external factors. 

Comparatively, the results within this category are somewhat difficult to evaluate due to a change in 
the method of recording time and cost data relating to performance management system audits.  
Undertaking these audits in-house requires alternative time-keeping and costing approaches to the 
outsourcing model.  The cost of undertaking such audits has previously been determined based on 
the salary of the resource rather than using a commercial charge-out rate comparative to the market 
therefore comparison between outsourced and internal cost per hour was not achievable.  

The Office has been developing a suitable methodology to allow the cost and delivery results from 
performance management system audits to be compared effectively using a relative analysis of in-
house and contracted results.  This level of analysis was not available for inclusion in this report 
however, the 2014/15 report will include this comparative analysis. 

Performance management system audits are intended to establish whether appropriate systems 
exist and are effective in enabling agencies to manage their outputs.   

17. Number of new performance management system audits issued: 
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18. Number of new performance management system audit hours issued: 

 

19. Number of new performance management system audit weighted average cost (estimated average cost for 2013/14): 

 
20. Number of new performance management system audit dollars issued ($) (salaried costs for 2013/14): 
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Output Group: Corporate 
During the 2013/14 year, the Office processed 615 (2012/13:605) operational transactions into the 
general ledger at a total value of $3.5 million (2012/13: $3.4 million).  Of these, 465 (75.6%) were 
generated and processed internally through accounts payable, petty cash and corporate credit card. 
This compared to 498 (82.3%) in the previous year.  Transactions generated externally and 
processed within the Office via ledger transfer facility or OBIPS totalled 44 (7.2%) compared to 40 
transactions (6.6%) in the previous year.  Transactions generated and processed on the Office’s 
behalf by DCIS or DoI such as bank fees, DCIS SLA payments and tax transactions totalled 106 
(17.2%) compared to 67 (11.1%) in 2012/13. 

21. Comparison of transactions processed for 2012/13 and 2013/14: 

   
Payment Method 2012/13   

% of # 
2012/13   

# 
2012/13   

$ 

Accounts Payable 52.90% 320 $3,027,847 
Corporate Credit 
Cards 9.80% 59 $13,679 

DCIS FOC 4.50% 27 $220,027 

Journal Adjustments 12.40% 75 $29,233 
Ledger Transfer 
Facility 0.50% 3 $1,283 

OBIPS 6.10% 37 $47,352 

Other account / 
ledger transactions 6.50% 40 $13,599 

Petty Cash 7.30% 44 $1,232 
 

Payment Method 2013/14   
% of # 

2013/14   
# 

2013/14   
$ 

Accounts Payable 53.98% 332 $3,180,972 
Corporate Credit 
Cards 4.55% 28 $5,548 

DCIS FOC 6.02% 37 $219,040 

Journal Adjustments 12.85% 79 $15,323 
Ledger Transfer 
Facility 1.14% 7 $1,080 

OBIPS 6.02% 37 $39,311 

Other account / 
ledger transactions 11.22% 69 $14,613 

Petty Cash 4.23% 26 $1,337 
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Records Management 
The Office has a dedicated records management 
position to provide support and administrative 
assistance with respect to the Office’s records.  
All audit tasks are recorded within a TRIM file 
and accordingly, there are a range of record 
types that are associated with audit activities.  
There are also requirements for retaining 
assorted administrative records. Records 
management and storage costs have changed 
over time for the Office with the implementation 
of our own efficiency measures impacting 
storage and destruction costs. 
 

22. Comparison of new records created by position: 
Created per person 2012/13 2013/14 

      

TRIM Personnel 1 0 

Auditor-General 2 0 

Principal Auditors 441 704 

Records Officer 1107 1456 

Business Manager 303 445 

  1854 2605 
 

During the 2013/14 year a total of 2605 records were created and 62 destroyed.  In 2012/13 there 
were 1854 new records created and 134 destroyed. 
 
23. Comparison of new records created: 

Records created 2012/13 2012/13 

OLD BOX TYPE - No update permitted 9 0 
DOCUMENT 922 1469 
ADMINISTRATION FILE 62 60 
AUDIT FILE 199 258 
AUTHORISED AUDITORS 32 31 
AUTHORISED AUDITORS FILE 1 11 
MANAGEMENT LETTER 94 123 
AUDIT OPINION 54 54 
ATA 74 199 
TRANSMITTAL LETTER 29 41 
EMAIL 307 213 
IRON MOUNTAIN SERVICE ORDER 5 0 
PERMANENT FILE 4 1 
BOX 60 68 
eSUBFOLDER 2 77 
Total new records 1854 2605 

 
As a result of increased efforts by staff over the last two years to both reduce storage requirements 
and achieve the Office’s objectives for archival and destruction; the period 2013/14 saw a significant 
reduction of necessary effort in this area, resulting in less records requiring destruction. 
 
24. Comparison of records destroyed: 

Records Destroyed 2012/13 2013/14 

OLD BOX TYPE - No update permitted 131 62 
OLD FILE-NO UPDATE PERMITTED-ADMINISTRATION FILE     
ADMINISTRATION FILE 3  
OLD FILE-NO UPDATE PERMITTED-CORRESPONDENCE FILE     
OLD FILE-NO UPDATE PERMITTED- WORKING PAPERS     
  134 62 
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Future priorities 
2015 will continue to see the Office focused on opportunities to increase audit coverage, further 
improve its efficiency and effectiveness and continue to demonstrate economic constraint.  The 
table below presents these focus areas: 

25. Table of Future Priorities: 

• Continue monitoring costs, mix of resources and staff assigned to audit 
tasks. 

• Work with Authorised Audit firms to ensure audits are focused on areas of 
greatest risk. 

• Engage with agencies’ internal audit functions through attendance at audit 
committee meetings in order to minimise duplication of audit tasks. 

• Continue the paperless office objective. 
• Standardise our communication with stakeholders by updating our website. 
• Building agency engagement through regular communication with Chief 

Executives and stakeholders including attendance at audit committee 
meetings. 

• Explore opportunities to further utilise technology in audit communication. 
• Finalise the performance management system audit framework so it can be 

replicated across agencies. 
• Explore opportunities to access and audit whole of government data 

maintained in key financial systems. 
• Seek feedback and take action in relation to opportunities to improve the 

clarity of reporting.  
• Increase selected performance management system audits that support 

monitoring and reporting against policies and initiatives. 
• Increased involvement in cross-jurisdictional audits. 
• Improved focus on outcomes through aligning strategic plan and 

performance accountability. 
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Our People 

Staff in Profile 
This section introduces you to the Auditor-General and staff of the Auditor-General’s office and 
presents demographic information as at 30 June 2014 and comparative financial periods. 

Julie Crisp Frank McGuiness’s term concluded on 13 September 2014 in accordance with the 
Audit Act and Julie Crisp was appointed as Auditor-General effective 15 September 
2014 by the former Administrator, Her Honour Sally Thomas. Julie was previously a 
Partner of an international professional services firm with whom she had 16 years 
of service following employment within various industry sectors.   

Julie has extensive prior experience in auditing financial, compliance and 
performance information within the public sector and corporate sectors, not for 
profit organisations and other entities.  Julie was an Authorised Auditor of the 
Northern Territory Auditor-General’s Office from 1998 to 2014.   

Her qualifications include: 

• Registered Company Auditor, Australian Securities and Investment 
Commission (RCA) 

• Fellow, Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (FCAANZ) 
• Graduate, Australian Institute of Company Directors (GAICD) 
• Certified Internal Auditor (CIA); Certified Government Audit Professional 

(CGAP); and Certification in Risk Management Assurance, Institute of Internal 
Auditors (CRMA) 

• Member, Association of Certified Fraud Examiners 
• Bachelor of Accountancy, University of South Australia 

 

Sue Cooper 
 

Sue Cooper was appointed on a contract as a Principal Auditor in 2004.  Sue is a 
member of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand and was a senior 
audit manager for KPMG Darwin.   Sue worked for the NTPS previously as a police 
officer.    
 
During her time with the Office, Sue has been responsible for audits across the 
agencies of the NTPS and has been instrumental in developing and implementing 
the Office’s core audit monitoring and reporting system “Aud-Tas”.  This application 
has been developed in-house by Sue who is responsible for its maintenance and 
upkeep.  Sue is also the administrator of our website. 
 
Sue is instrumental in developing the three year audit plan and has implemented 
extensive reporting and communication tools to increase efficiencies associated 
with the systems within the Office that support audit activity.  
 
Sue’s qualifications include: 

• Member, Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand (CAANZ) 
• Bachelor of Commerce (With Distinction), University of Southern 

Queensland 
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Natalie Scott Natalie Scott commenced with the Office in 2012 with a primary focus on 
performance management system audits.  Prior to joining the Office, Natalie 
held a number of senior roles with the Northern Territory Government, 
including Finance Manager and Assistant Director Financial Management.  
Natalie’s auditing experience comes from her time with an international 
professional services firm, working with a wide range of clients including state 
and local government, gaming, construction, mining, community services, 
forensic, councils, retail and utilities.   
 
Natalie is Deputy President of the Northern Territory Branch Council of CPA 
Australia and represents the Northern Territory on CPA Australia’s Public Sector 
Network. 
 
Her qualifications include: 

• Graduate Certificate in Public Sector Management, Flinders University 
• Certified Practising Accountant, CPA Australia 
• Bachelor of Business (Accounting), Avondale College 

  
Michelle Woodcock 

 

Michelle Woodcock commenced with the Public Sector in 1996 and with the 
Office in July 2007.  Michelle has worked in Business Manager or Project Officer 
roles with a number of agencies including Health, Education and DCIS.  Along 
with over 15 year’s public sector experience, Michelle has also extensive 
experience in the private sector industries of hospitality, banking, and law.    

A long term resident of the Northern Territory, Michelle gained her Bachelor of 
Business through the Northern Territory University and is currently studying a 
Masters in Professional Accounting through the University of New England.  

Michelle is responsible for managing and delivering the corporate support 
functions for the Office.  She has successfully delivered seven audited financial 
statements to the Auditor-General all with unqualified opinions.  Michelle has 
been responsible for implementing the new Work Health and Safety 
Management System as well as the completion of the Office’s budgets, annual 
reports and other agency reporting requirements. 

Kaaren Matthewson 

 

Kaaren Matthewson joined the Office in September 2012.  Prior to the NTPS, 
Kaaren worked in a variety of private sector, administrative and retail roles, 
including hairdressing, banking and retail.  Kaaren has been working in the 
records area for almost three years and holds the position of Records 
Administrator for the Office. 

During her time here, Kaaren has achieved success through reducing the 
Office’s storage and destruction costs relating to records management.  Kaaren 
has worked hard to become familiar with the Office’s records practices which 
vary significantly between the audit function and the administrative functions 
of the agency. 

Kaaren provides support to the Auditor-General and the Office Administrator 
and other roles in the Office.  As part of the administrative responsibilities, 
Kaaren is an active member of the TRIM, CCC, and EIMS user groups. 
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During the year ended 30 June 2014, the average FTE of the office was 5.0 compared to an average 
of 4.7 for the previous financial year.  Our head count for staffing in 2013/14 was five compared to 
six in 2012/13.   A staff member had extended leave without pay from July 2012 until the position 
was relinquished in November 2012.  It was subsequently advertised in November 2012 and filled 
permanently in January 2013. Action to fill another vacancy commenced in the 2013/14 period 
however was not finalised as at 30 June 2014.   The following graph compares the FTE for each pay 
period for the 2014 and comparative years: 

26. Comparison of FTE to pay periods: 

 

The following graph shows the variation in staff numbers by classification over the 2014 and prior 
year.    

27. Comparison of head count, gender and level categories: 

 

The following graph shows a breakdown of classifications by gender for the Office.  In 2013/14, 80% 
of personnel were female and 20% male consistent with the previous financial year: 

28. Comparison of gender and age categories: 
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Although the Office strategically plans for authorised leave to ensure maximum coverage at all 
times, sick leave arrangements are unplanned.  The following graphs highlight sick leave 
entitlements from 2009/10. On average, in 2012/13, 90.1% of sick leave taken was paid leave (with 
or without a certificate) and in 2013/14 this figure was 89.1%.   

29. Comparison of breakdown of sick leave types 

 

On average, in 2012/13 10.67 days per person were taken as sick leave compared to 13.72 in 
2013/14.  The average sick leave taken across the NTPS during 2012/13 and 2013/14 respectively 
was 9.36 and 9.50. 

30. Average head count, average sick leave compared to NTPS average 
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Training and Development 
The Auditor-General, Principal Auditors and the Business Manager hold post-graduate qualifications. 
The Auditor-General and the Principal Auditors are members of professional bodies that mandate a 
minimum number of professional development hours per annum.  In order to meet the continuous 
professional development (CPD) requirements during the year ended 30 June 2014, professional 
staff undertook the following training and development activities: 

• attendance at seminars relevant to the accounting and auditing profession 
• online sessions informing changes to accounting and auditing standards 
• presentation / facilitation at training and development sessions provided to others 

The small size of the Office and the breadth of skills that are required to maintain a small, specialised 
agency present a challenge to simultaneously completing training requirements and maintaining 
enough resources to ensure continuity of business, in the absence of those attending training.  To 
this end, the Office has directed its attention towards online training modules wherever possible, in 
order to meet the training needs and requirements of its personnel.  This mode of training provides 
greater value for money as costs associated with travel are not incurred.   

All personnel within the office: 

• undertake induction, WHS awareness and workplace refresher courses, or courses identified 
through gap analysis that have direct relevance to the Office and the role the Officer is 
required to perform 

• contribute to Across Government Working Groups. 

   

 

32. Training and development dollars ($) spent 5 years to 
2013/14.

 
31. Training and development dollars ($) spent by age/gender. 

 
During the 2013/14 period, $8,593 was spent on training and development compared to the 
2012/13 period of $16,215. 

Employees meet regularly with the Auditor-General to discuss performance, commitments and 
training opportunities.  Individual performance plans will be aligned during the year ending 30 June 
2015 to the recently revised strategic plan. 
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Our Authorised Auditors 
There is a close working relationship between personnel of the Office and the private sector 
Authorised Auditors.  Authorised Auditors are appropriately qualified 
and experienced persons who are appointed by the Auditor-General 
pursuant to section 17 of the Audit Act.  Currently, the Office holds 
contracts to work with five firms; BDO, Deloitte, KPMG, Merit 

Partners and TDH Chartered 
Accountants.  

The reliance upon firms within the private sector results from 
the difficulties in recruiting appropriately qualified and 
experienced public sector auditors in a small jurisdiction and in 

providing suitable opportunities for career development.  
However, the approach adopted does allow the Office to take 
advantage of the significant pool of private sector audit 
experience that is available. 

The majority of field audit work is undertaken by the Authorised 
Auditors in accordance with their methodology and they prepare 
the necessary working papers, draft reports, opinions and management letters for review by the 
Auditor-General and staff of the Office.  The responsibility for the content of correspondence to 

agencies and for reports submitted to the Legislative 
Assembly rests solely with the Auditor-General.   

The relationship between the number of hours 
acquired from Authorised Auditors and the cost 

incurred by the Office is affected by several factors.  For example, the relative weighting between 
partners, managers and audit seniors can vary between audits, depending upon the nature and 
complexity of each audit.  At the same time, the types of audits undertaken will also affect the mix of 
audit skills employed.  For example financial, information 
technology or specialist insurance auditors may be used 
depending upon the nature of the audit which then affects the 
average hourly cost of any particular audit.   

The following graphic highlights some staffing statistics and 
operational results relating to Authorised Auditors during the reporting period.  

 

 

 

 

33. Summary of end of year results for the contracted Authorised Auditors 
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Work Health and Safety 
Federal legislation effective from 1 July 2012 required all employers to achieve compliance with the 
national uniform legislation relating to Work Health and Safety (WHS).  To this end, the Office has 
implemented a comprehensive framework, including relevant policy, procedures, and supporting 
registers and documents within all levels and functions of the agency. 

Following the revision of the WHS policy, procedures, processes and systems, the policy was 
forwarded to the firms contracted to provide audit services. At the time of confirming the six-
monthly allocation of audits, the firms are required to return a written acknowledgement that they 
will embody the principles of the policy in accordance with the legislation and that they have 
adequate systems in place to support the WHS legislation. 

A full inventory of WHS risks was completed with no priority risks identified.  Tagging and testing has 
been completed annually since it was first conducted in January 2013.  All Office signage was 
updated to clearly reflect locations and contacts of wardens, exits and fire extinguishers.  Both the 
administrative positions have participated in the warden training and the Records Management 
Officer is the Office’s nominated First Aid Officer.  WHS is a standing agenda item at weekly staff 
meetings.   As part of our communication framework for WHS, all minutes recording WHS 
discussions are recorded in TRIM.   

34. WHS objectives: 

Compliance registers will be maintained for all 
relevant Australian Standards and codes of 
practice 

100% compliance achieved as demonstrated 
by: 

Communication strategies will exist for all 
workers of the Office. 

Checklist completed and recorded in TRIM.  
Discussion at team meeting recorded in minutes. 

Documentation is reviewed; risks are identified 
and correctly managed. 

Checklist completed and recorded in TRIM.  
Discussion at team meeting recorded in minutes. 

Training is identified and completed to assist in 
the minimisation of risk within the agency. 

Training identified through staff meetings or ad-
hoc discussions.  Recorded in minutes of team 
meetings. 

All workers are inducted to the agency. Signed induction record, recorded on File. 
WHS risks are identified and reported. Checklist completed and recorded in TRIM.  

Discussion at team meeting recorded in minutes. 
Integration of WHS within all appropriate 
systems. 

Checklist completed and recorded in TRIM.  
Discussion at team meeting recorded in minutes. 

 
With the introduction of the WHS framework, the Office can now clearly identify all WHS related 
expenditure.  A comparison of WHS related expenditure and incidents since the introduction of the 
new legislated requirements is represented below.   

35. WHS costs and incidents reported: 
  2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 
Total WHS Expenditure $2,322  $2,680  $3,542  

Total WHS Incidents Reported 0  0 1  
 
Incidents are reported using the mandated whole of government reporting system.  Incidents are 
investigated internally and action taken where possible by the Office. Incidents are closed 
accordingly once appropriately addressed.  
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Compliance with Employment Instructions 
EMPLOYMENT 
INSTRUCTION  

AGENCY REQUIREMENT/ACTION 

No. 1. Filling Vacancies 

 
Internal procedures on recruitment and selection have been implemented. The Auditor-
General’s position was advertised during the 2013/14 period; however, the recruitment 
process was not complete at year end.   

No. 2. Probation.                                                                      

 
Probationary process implemented within the agency and employees notified.  There 
were no probationary actions during 2013/14. 

No. 3. Natural Justice. 

 
The principles of natural justice are observed in all dealings with employees and promoted 
within the Office’s team meetings.  The induction process informs new employees about 
the principles of natural justice. 

No. 4. Employee 
Performance Management 
and Development Systems. 

 

The Office reports annually to the Office of the Commissioner for Public Employment on 
training and development.  The Office, in accordance with its professional conduct rules, 
has implemented a performance management system for its employees and contracted 
services.  Auditors are required to complete annual training requirements against their 
professional standing.   

No. 5. Medical 
Examinations.                                              

 

There were no requirements during the reporting period for the Auditor-General to 
engage a health practitioner for the purpose of conducting an examination of an 
employee.   

No. 6. Performance and 
Inability.                                                                            

The Office reports annually to the Office of the Commissioner for Public Employment on 
performance and inability.  There were no performance or inability issues during the 
reporting period. 

No. 7. Discipline.                                                                                

 
The Office reports annually to the Office of the Commissioner for Public Employment on 
disciplinary matters.  There were no breaches of conduct or disciplinary matters for the 
reporting period. 

No. 8. Internal Agency 
Complaints and Section 59 
Grievance Reviews. 

The Office reports annually to the Office of the Commissioner for Public Employment on 
disciplinary matters.  There were no complaints or section 59 grievance matters for the 
reporting periods. 

No. 9. Employment 
Records.                                                     

 

The Office has implemented procedures for maintaining and accessing appropriate 
employee records.  The Office strives to improve procedures and mechanisms for all 
employees with regard of the use of the Tower Records Information Management System 
(TRIM). 

No 10. Equality of 
Employment Opportunity 
Programs. 

The Office strives to continually review and implement equal opportunities programs.  
The Office reports annually to the Office of the Commissioner for Public Employment on 
equal opportunity matters.  Diversity and inclusivity are supported and promoted 
throughout the Office activities and within the audit contract.  

No. 11. Occupational 
Health and Safety 
Standards Program.                                                         

 

The Office has developed and implemented its Work Health and Safety (WHS) framework 
over the last two reporting periods.  The framework has been incorporated within all 
aspects of the Office’s operations.   

No. 12. Code of Conduct                                                         

 
The Office has included its expectations and information regarding the guidelines and 
values associated with behaviour in the workplace, within its induction process.  Regular 
team meetings are used to reinforce and communicate information relating to gifts, 
benefits, independence, conflict of interest and other agency, public sector or politically 
specific principles.  There were no breaches reported during the reporting period. 

No. 13. Appropriate 
Workplace Behaviour.                                                         

 

Appropriate workplace behaviour for new employees is covered in the induction process.  
Supporting information is available through the website.  Discussion and communication 
is provided through either team meetings or a case-by-case basis. 

No. 14. Redeployment and 
Redundancy Procedures.                                                         

There were no requirements during the reporting period for the Auditor-General to utilise 
the redeployment and redundancy procedures.    
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Corporate Social Responsibility  

Environment 
The Office has long been conscious of minimising waste and creating efficiency. Since the 2012 
financial year, the following measures have been implemented to reduce the Office’s environmental 
footprint: 

• Internal 
o All information received physically or electronically is immediately 

recorded in TRIM enabling staff to access relevant documentation 
efficiently. 

• External 
o Predominantly all elements of the audit files received from 

Authorised Auditors are received electronically. 
o The Auditor-General and Principal Auditors review audit files 

electronically. 
o Progress reports are received electronically. 

 
• During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Office reduced its fleet size by one 

vehicle (30% of the fleet).  The fleet was maintained at two motor vehicles 
during the year ended 30 June 2014.  

 
• Most electronic devices are powered down completely when not in use.  
• The Office has implemented a “lights off” policy for parts of its tenancy that 

are not in use. 
 

 

Our Contribution 
The personnel of the Office contribute to society by: 

• Any gifts received in return for public speaking engagements are included in a 
staff raffle with the funds being donated to a charity nominated by the staff.   

• Employees regularly participate in community fund raising events. 
• Staff members are encouraged and supported for their involvement in 

contributing to their professions through involvement with professional and 
community associations including, as examples, CPA Australia and Business 
and Professional Women (NT). 

• Individual members of the office volunteer for a range of community events 
and activities. 
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Financial Results 

Financial Analysis 
The Office provides support to the Auditor-General in the discharge of statutory obligations under 
the Audit Act and the Public Information Act. 

That support includes: 

• the conduct of field work as part of examining financial information prepared by the 
Treasurer, agencies, statutory bodies and other public sector entities that report to the 
Legislative Assembly 

• the conduct of performance management and information system audits 
• operational support in areas such as financial, information technology and records 

management 
• the conduct of reviews of public information issued by Public Authorities. 

Strategic issues facing the Office in 2013-14 included: 

• balancing the expectations of the Legislative Assembly and requirements imposed by 
legislation 

• extending the scope of audit activity to include a greater emphasis on performance 
management system audits 

• undertaking reviews as required in accordance with the Public Information Act. 

Budget highlights of the Office in 2013-14 included: 

The net assets of the Office increased from $110,561 to $180,078 for the year as a result of the net 
surplus. The surplus was largely due to the decrease in other operating expenses by $24,226 to 
$88,890 (compared to $113,116 for prior year) combined with the receipt of additional output of 
$400,000 to support the decreasing equity position. 

Total income for 2013/14 was 2.6% less than the approved final budget of $4,428,000.  Expenses for 
the period amounted to $4,244,509 and were approximately 4.1% under the final budget.   

Performance compared to budget shows that overall revenue fell short as a result of recovery 
estimates being higher at the commencement of the period than at the conclusion.  The same 
applied to operational expenses.  Employee expenses were only slightly under budget (1.9%) as a 
result of a smaller uptake of entitlements than originally planned.  

Actual operational costs were also under budget as a result of savings found in some operating areas 
(e.g. travel and printing costs) along with lower than expected Goods and Services Free of Charge 
expenses.   

The second half of the audit program was adjusted downwards as a result of the mid-year budget. 
Although additional output was approved late in the financial year, it could only be applied against 
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audits with a later commencement date.  As a result, actual expenditure on audits was 4.1% less 
than budget.       

The Office was financed for the year by: 
 $’000 
Output Revenue 3,523 
Recoveries of audit costs   568 
Decrease in accounts receivable   151 
Increase in current provisions    7 
          4,249 

 

Those funds were applied to: 
 $’000 
Authorised Auditors expenses 3,085  
Employee expenses    847 
Decrease in payables     176 
Other operating expenses      89 
Increase in cash      44 
Decrease in non-current provisions       8 
           4,249 

 

Based on the availability of cash assets and the current liabilities recorded in the financial report, the 
Office has a current ratio of 2.5 indicating that the Office has sufficient current assets to settle its 
obligations as and when they fall due.       

Income 
As in past years, the largest source of revenue for the Office has been Output Revenue that is 
appropriated by the Legislative Assembly pursuant to the annual Appropriation Act.  Output 
Revenue represented 81.7% of the total income of the Office for 2013/14 compared with 79.6% for 
2012/13.  Additional output funding was awarded to the Office in order to maintain the required 
audit activity without incurring a deficit in the reporting period following deficits reported for the 
four preceding financial years.   

36. Budget Papers 2013/14 Income budget and actual for the Office: 

($000) Budget Actual Variance 

Output  3,523             3,523 0 

Sales of Goods & Services 627 568 (59) 

Goods & Services Received FOC 278 223 (55) 

Total Income 4,428 4,314 (114) 

 
Audit costs recovered represented 13.2% compared to 14.8% for the prior year.  Audit costs 
recovered by the Office decreased slightly due to the time lag associated with completing audit work 
in one period and billing in the next period.  The additional Output Revenue alleviated this shortfall 
and assisted with covering the full cost of operating activities.  As discussed above, a small surplus 
resulted.   
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The accompanying graph presents total 
revenue and expenditure comparatively for 
the last seven years.  Expenditure has 
steadily increased whereas revenue 
remained largely unchanged for three of the 
seven years. The noticable increase for 
2013/14 resulted from the additional 
funding leading to the first reported surplus 
in five years.  
 
The graph also presents the trend of 
increasing expenditure compared to 
relatively stable output revenue received. 

37. Comparison of operating results: 

 

 
Over the seven years from 2007/08 to 2013/14, audit costs increased at an average annual rate of 
3.6% compared to average growth in Output Revenue of 1.3% over the same period. 

38. Comparison of operating results: 

 

Total revenue comprises Output 
Revenue as well as a limited cost 
recovery initiative whereby costs of 
audits are recovered from entities that 
lie outside the Public Account and those 
entities that require additional audit 
services unrelated to the Public Account 
such as grant acquittals. 

  
39. Comparison of operating results: 

  2012/13 2013/14 

Output 3,090,000 3,523,000 
Sales of Goods & 
Services 574,234 567,736 

  Total Revenue 3,664,234 4,090,736 
G&S FOC 220,027 223,289 
  Total Income 3,884,261 4,314,025 

 

 
As discussed above, the increase in revenue for this 
reporting period is attributed to the additional funding 
awarded to the Office towards the end of 2013/14. The 
following graphs demonstrate the composition of revenue 
for the 2013/14 and comparative year.   
 
 
 
 

40. Revenue as a percentage for this year and the comparative prior year: 
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The table below highlights the agencies that are subject to recovery of costs and are billed within 
Sales of Goods and Services).  Total costs recovered for 2013/14 includes work completed or accrued 
at 30 June 2014.  Total costs recovered for 2012/13 represent the value of work completed as at 30 
June 2013, but does not include any outstanding commitments.  

41. Comparison of audit costs recovered at year end (includes year-end accruals) ($):  

AUDIT COSTS RECOVERED 2012/13 2013/14 
Batchelor Institute of Indigenous Tertiary Education 49,304 49,911 
Charles Darwin University 135,758 138,355 
Darwin Waterfront Corporation 32,485 37,397 
Department of Business 6,279 23,813 
Department of Corporate and Information Services 9,177 0 
Department of Education and Children's Services 15,850 0 
Desert Knowledge Australia 0 4,235 
Department of Local Government 10,400 5,069 
Department of Lands and Planning 27,491 23,640 
Department of Housing 0 29,205 
Department of Treasury and Finance 20,368 11,216 
Menzies School of Health Research 34,806 26,536 
NT Build  14,350 16,810 
NT Legal Aid Commission 29,218 22,150 
NT Major Events Company Pty Ltd 34,950 23,544 
Power and Water Corporation 33,162 41,663 
Territory Insurance Office 120,636 114,192 
  574,234 567,736 

 

Expenses 
The Office’s performance against budget highlights the effect of a nominally growing budget 
compared to the increasing price of real audit costs for delivering the same or similar service to the 
previous year.    

42. Breakdown of major operating items for 2013/14 budget and actual for the Office: 

($000) Budget Actual Variance 

Personnel  (864)           ( 847) (17) 

Expenses  (3,564) (3,397) (167) 

Total Expenses (4,428) (4,244) (184) 

Output Appropriation  3,523 3,523 0 

Sales of Goods & Services  627 568 59 

Goods & Services Received FOC 278 223 55 

Total Revenue 4,428 4,314 114 

Variance (deficit)/profit - 70 (70) 
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43. Budget Papers Output Expense categories budget and actual for the Office 2013/14: 

($000) Budget Actual Variance 

Audits and reviews output  4,139 3,836 (303) 

Corporate & Governance output 289 408 119 

Total 4,428 4,244 (184) 

 

Administrative efficiencies have been applied internally to the agency and consequently minor 
savings have been found through the combination of changes to fleet, printing, travel, training and 
the effect of moving to an electronic environment as well as the installation of energy saving 
facilities, overall, these have a minimal effect compared to the increasing cost of delivering audit 
activity. 

The breakdown of major operational costs below indicates that some savings have been experienced 
across each category except for personnel costs.  Due to the size and staffing structure of the Office, 
it is difficult to achieve savings in this category of cost without affecting delivery of overall services 
for the agency.    

44. Breakdown and comparison of major categories of costs (in actual dollars) & percentage comparisons 

  2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 

PERSONNEL COSTS 735,442.95 705,835.39 784,064.03 811,361.64 847,354.47 
AUDIT FEES 2,736,790.00 2,916,224.55 2,961,741.82 2,994,411.84 3,084,973.67 
DCIS SERVICES FOC 175,255.12 178,583.05 190,833.18 220,027.09 223,289.60 
ADMINISTRATION COSTS 114,751.32 117,866.36 92,166.68 112,754.92 88,890.98 
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,762,239.39 3,918,509.35 4,028,805.71 4,138,555.49 4,244,508.72 
            

% ADMIN TO TOTAL COSTS 3.05% 3.01% 2.29% 2.72% 2.09% 
% DCIS TO TOTAL COSTS 4.66% 4.56% 4.74% 5.32% 5.26% 
% PERSONNEL TO TOTAL COSTS 19.55% 18.01% 19.46% 19.60% 19.96% 
% AUDIT TO TOTAL COSTS 72.74% 74.42% 73.51% 72.35% 72.68% 
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For 2013/14, authorised audit costs comprise 72.7% of total operational costs compared to an 
average of 73.1% over the last five years.  Personnel costs were 19.96% against a five year average of 
19.3%.  Administrative costs amount were 2.1% for the year against a five year average rate of 2.6% 
comparatively.   

Personnel costs have grown over time, however, differences are largely explained through the result 
of staffing movements.  2012/13 saw all vacancies filled on a full time basis, although temporarily.  
The Principal Audit position was re-evaluated during the 2013/14 year and the recruitment action 
commenced but not completed during this period.    

45. Comparison of expense categories for 2013/14 and the comparative prior year: 

 

The graph below demonstrates the Office’s expenses steadily increasing whilst a constant revenue 
base has resulted in deficits being incurred for the four years prior to the reporting period.  

46. Comparison of operating performance: 
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Financial Sustainability 

Audit Outcomes 
The financial statements of the Office were audited in 2013/14 by David Francis, of Bentleys 
Adelaide.  The Office received an Independent Audit Report including the audit opinion that the 
financial reports of the Auditor-General’s Office complied with the Australian Accounting Standards 
and gave a true and fair view of the Office’s financial position.   

No weaknesses in controls were identified during the audit.  No direct action was required as a result 
of the completion of the audit; however, some matters were recommended for consideration: 

Finding Event Outcome 
Provision for External 
Audit Fees 

The provision of the audit accrual 
was discontinued. 

Reinstated audit accrual and 
provision. 

Disclosure of 
Commitments 

Disclosure of non-contracted 
services in the commitment note. 

Removal of estimates for non-
contracted services from the 
commitment note. 

Checking Time spent by 
Authorised Audit Firms 

A level of trust has been 
established whereby the Office 
relies upon invoiced hours in 
order to finalise accounts. 

Recommended that Firms 
provide costing reports on 
request. 

 

All issues have been brought to the attention of the incoming Auditor-General and where 
appropriate, steps were taken at the relevant time to accommodate audit recommendations. 
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Appendix A - Financial Statements  
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                               NORTHERN TERRITORY AUDITOR-GENERAL’S OFFICE 

Comprehensive Operating Statement 
              For the year ended 30 June 2014 
 

   
Note 2014 

 
2013 

              

       INCOME 
            Appropriation 
            

 
Output 

  
3,523,000 

 
3,090,000 

       Sales of goods and services 
 

5 567,736 
 

574,234 

       Goods and services received free of 
charge 

 
4 223,290 

 
220,027 

              TOTAL INCOME 
 

3 4,314,026 
 

3,884,261 

       
       OPERATING EXPENSES 

            Employee expenses 
 

7 (847,354) 
 

(811,362) 

       Administrative expenses 
            

 

Purchases of goods and 
services 

 
6 (3,168,442) 

 
(3,101,570) 

       
 

Repairs and maintenance 
  

(403) 
 

(116) 

       
 

Property Management 
  

(5,020) 
 

(5,841) 

       
 

Other administrative expenses 
  

(223,290) 
 

(220,027) 

              TOTAL EXPENSES 
 

3 (4,244,509) 
 

(4,138,916) 

       NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) 
  

69,517 
 

(254,655) 

       
       OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

            Changes in accounting policies 
  

                 -    
 

                 -    
       Changes of prior period errors 

  
                 -    

 
                 -    

       TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 

                 -    
 

                 -    

    
  

 
  

COMPREHENSIVE RESULT 
  

69,517 
 

(254,655) 
 

The Comprehensive Operating Statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements 
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     NORTHERN TERRITORY AUDITOR-GENERAL’S OFFICE 

Balance Sheet 
            As at 30 June 2014 

   
Note 2014 

 
2013 

              

       ASSETS 
            Current Assets 
            

 
Cash and deposits 

 
8 291,452 

 
247,319 

       
 

Receivables 
 

9 89,016 
 

240,381 

       
 

Prepayments 
  

82 
 

- 

       Total Current Assets 
  

380,550 
 

487,700 

       

       
       LIABILITIES 

            Current Liabilities 
            

 
Payables 

 
10 49,668 

 
225,432 

       
 

Provisions 
 

11 102,906 
 

96,114 

       Total Current Liabilities 
  

152,574 
 

321,546 

       Non-Current Liabilities 
            

 
Provisions 

 
11 47,898 

 
55,593 

       Total Non-Current Liabilities 
  

47,898 
 

55,593 

       TOTAL LIABILITIES 
  

200,472 
 

377,139 

       NET ASSETS 
  

180,078 
 

110,561 

       
       EQUITY 

     
       
 

Current Year Surplus/Deficit 
  

69,517 
 

(254,655) 

       
 

Capital 
  

369,931 
 

369,931 

       
 

Accumulated funds 
  

(259,370) 
 

(4,715) 

       TOTAL EQUITY 
  

180,078 
 

110,561 

              
   The Balance Sheet is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements 
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NORTHERN TERRITORY AUDITOR-GENERAL’S OFFICE 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
           For the year ended 30 June 2014 

                

        

    

Equity at 1 July Comprehensive 
Result 

Transactions 
with owners in 

their capacity as 
owners 

Equity at 30 
June 

    
2013-14 

 
Note 

        
Accumulated Funds 

 
(259,370) 69,517                  -    (189,853) 

        Capital - Transactions with Owners 
    

      
 .  

 

 
Equity Injections 

     
        

  
Capital Appropriation 

 
25,843                    -                     -         25,843  

        

  
Equity Transfers In 

 
53,088                    -                     -         53,088  

        

  
Other Equity Injections 601,000                    -          601,000  

      
 .  

 

 
Total Equity Injections 

 
679,931                    -                     -    679,931 

        

 
Equity Withdrawals 

     
        

  
Capital Withdrawals 

 
(310,000)                    -                     -    (310,000) 

        

 
Total Equity Withdrawals 

 
(310,000)                    -                     -    (310,000) 

Total Capital - Transactions with Owners 110,561 69,517 - 180,078 

        

    

Equity at 1 July Comprehensive 
Result 

Transactions 
with owners in 

their capacity as 
owners 

Equity at 30 
June 

    
2012-13 

 
Note 

        
Accumulated Funds 

 
(4,715) (254,655)                  -    (259,370) 

        Capital - Transactions with Owners 
    

      
 .  

 

 
Equity Injections 

     
        

  
Capital Appropriation 

 
25,843                    -                     -         25,843  

        

  
Equity Transfers In 

 
53,088                    -                     -         53,088  

        

  
Other Equity Injections 431,000                    -        170,000      601,000  

      
 .  

 

 
Total Equity Injections 

 
509,931                    -        170,000  679,931 

        

 
Equity Withdrawals 

     
        

  
Capital Withdrawals 

 
(310,000)                    -                     -    (310,000) 

        

 
Total Equity Withdrawals 

 
(310,000)                    -                     -    (310,000) 

Total Capital - Transactions with Owners 195,216 (254,655) 170,000 110,561 

 
The Statement of Changes in Equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements. 
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    NORTHERN TERRITORY AUDITOR-GENERAL’S OFFICE 

Cash Flow Statement 
      For the year ended 30 June 2014 

   
2014 

 
2013 

            

      CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
    Cash Receipts from Operating Activities 
    

 
Appropriation - Output 

 
3,523,000 

 
3,090,000 

 
Receipts from Sales of Goods and Services 

 
567,736 

 
574,234 

 
AR Control 

 
54,989 

 
(23,427) 

 
Accrued Revenue 

 
82,205 

 
(16,057) 

 
Equity injection 

 
                 -    

 
      170,000  

 
GST Receipts on Sales 

 
55,072 

 
46,571 

 
GST Adjustments 

 
- 

 
             (7)  

 
GST Receipts from Taxation Authority 

 
277,948 

 
269,065 

Total Cash Receipts from Operating Activities 
 

4,560,950 
 

4,110,379 

      Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
    

      Payments to employees 
 

(845,035) 
 

(792,608) 

 
Salaries and related expenses 

 
(734,761) 

 
(697,399) 

 
Payroll Tax 

 
(43,191) 

 
(45,823) 

 
Fringe Benefits Tax 

 
(19,156) 

 
(16,637) 

 
Superannuation Paid 

 
(51,951) 

 
(53,886) 

 
Accrued Salaries 

 
3,223 

 
5,517 

 
Provision for Employee Entitlements 

 
8,063 

 
8,068 

 
Other Provisions 

 
433 

 
4,905 

 
Provision for Non-Current Recreation Leave 

 
(7,695) 

 
2,647 

      Payments for Goods and Services 
 

(3,671,782) 
 

(3,254,484) 

 
Repairs and Maintenance 

 
(403) 

 
(117) 

 
Property Maintenance 

 
(5,020) 

 
(5,841) 

 
Purchase of Goods and Services 

 
(3,157,284) 

 
(3,101,569) 

 
GST Paid 

 
(318,849) 

 
(306,779) 

 
Other Pre-paid Expenses 

 
(82) 

 
7,832 

 
AP Control 

 
(137,702) 

 
135,489 

 
CC Control 

 
622 

 
(4,939) 

 
Accrued Expenses Other 

 
(40,064) 

 
17,866 

 
Accrued Expenses Audit Fees 

 
(13,000) 

 
3,574 

      Total Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
 

(4,516,817) 
 

(4,047,092) 

      Net Cash flows from Operating Activities 
 

44,133 
 

63,287 

      

 
Net Increase/Decrease in Cash Held 

 
44,133 

 
63,287 

 
Cash at Beginning of Financial Year 

 
247,319 

 
184,032 

Cash at end of Financial Year 
 

291,452 
 

247,319 

 
The Cash Flow Statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements. 
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NORTHERN TERRITORY AUDITOR-GENERAL’S OFFICE 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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INDEX OF NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note  
1. Objectives and Funding 
2. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies  
3. Comprehensive Operating Statement by Output Group 
 INCOME 
4. Goods and Services Received Free of Charge 
5. Audit Costs Recovered 
 EXPENSES 
6. Purchases of Goods and Services 

 

 

7. Employee Expenses 

 

 

 ASSETS 
8. Cash and Deposits 
9. Receivables 
 LIABILITIES 
10. Payables 
11. Provisions 
 OTHER DISCLOSURES 
12. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement 
13. Financial Instruments 
14. Commitments 
15. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
16. Events Subsequent to Balance Date 
17. Accountable Officer’s Trust Account 
18. Write-offs, Postponements, Waivers, Gifts and Ex Gratia Payments 
19. Schedule of Territory Items 

 

  



 
 

 

 

63 2013-14 Annual Report 

NORTHERN TERRITORY AUDITOR-GENERAL’S OFFICE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

 
1. Objectives and funding 

The Office is an Agency established under Administrative Arrangements Order to support the 
activities of the Auditor-General. 

The Auditor-General’s role is to audit the Public Accounts and other accounts as required by 
various Acts of Parliament, to perform such other audits as may be permitted by the Audit Act 
and to report to the Legislative Assembly at least once in each year. 

The Office is funded primarily by, and is dependent upon, the provision of funding by the 
Legislative Assembly in accordance with the provisions of the Appropriation Act. 

These financial statements report on all assets and revenues that were controlled by the 
Office during the year and through which the Office was able to perform its functions and 
deliver the outputs specified in the Budget Papers. 

2. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 

a) Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Financial Management Act and related Treasurer’s Directions. The Financial Management Act 
requires the Office to prepare financial statements for the year ended 30 June based on the 
form determined by the Treasurer. The form of agency financial statements is to include: 

(i) a Certification of the Financial Statements; 

(ii) a Comprehensive Operating Statement; 

(iii) a Balance Sheet; 

(iv) a Statement of Changes in Equity; 

(v) a Cash Flow Statement; and 

(vi) applicable explanatory notes to the financial statements.  

The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, which 
recognises the effect of financial transactions and events when they occur, rather than when 
cash is paid out or received. As part of the preparation of the financial statements, all 
intra-agency transactions and balances have been eliminated.  

Except where stated, the financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the 
historical cost convention. 

The form of the agency financial statements is also consistent with the requirements of 
Australian Accounting Standards. The effects of all relevant new and revised Standards and  
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Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are effective 
for the current annual reporting period have been evaluated.  

b) Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations Issued but not yet Effective 

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Standards and Interpretations 
listed below were in issue but not yet effective. 

Standard/Interpretation Summary 

Effective for annual 
reporting periods 
beginning on or after 

Impact on financial 
statements 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 
(Dec 2010), AASB 2010-7 
Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 9 (Dec 2010) [AASB 
1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 
118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 
132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 
and Interpretations 2, 5, 10, 12, 
19 & 127], AASB 2012-6 
Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – 
Mandatory Effective Date of 
AASB 9 and Transition 
Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-11, 
2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8], AASB 
2013-9 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards 
– Conceptual Framework, 
Materiality and Financial 
Instruments 

AASB 9 incorporates revised 
requirements for the 
classification and 
measurement of financial 
instruments resulting from 
the IASB’s project to replace 
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and 
Measurement (AASB 139 
Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and 
Measurement). 

1 Jan 2017 Impact is yet to be 
determined.  

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting   Sets out budgetary reporting 
requirements for not-for-
profit entities within the 
General Government Sector.  

1 July 2014  Impact is yet to be 
determined. 

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards 
– Offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities 
(Amendments to AASB 132) 

Addresses inconsistencies in 
current practice when 
applying the offsetting 
criteria in AASB 132 Financial 
Instruments: Presentation. 

1 Jan 2014 No impact. 
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c) Agency and Territory Items 

The financial statements of Office include income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity over 
which the Office has control (Agency items). Certain items, while managed by the agency, are 
controlled and recorded by the Territory rather than the agency (Territory items). Territory 
items are recognised and recorded in the Central Holding Authority as discussed below. 

Central Holding Authority 
The Central Holding Authority is the ‘parent body’ that represents the Government’s 
ownership interest in Government-controlled entities.  

The Central Holding Authority also records all Territory items, such as income, expenses, 
assets and liabilities controlled by the Government and managed by agencies on behalf of the 
Government. The main Territory item is Territory income, which includes taxation and royalty 
revenue, Commonwealth general purpose funding (such as GST revenue), fines, and statutory 
fees and charges.  

The Central Holding Authority also holds certain Territory assets not assigned to agencies as 
well as certain Territory liabilities that are not practical or effective to assign to individual 
agencies such as unfunded superannuation and long service leave. 

The Central Holding Authority recognises and records all Territory items, and as such, these 
items are not included in the agency’s financial statements. 

d) Comparatives 

Comparative information for the 2012-13 financial year has been reclassified, where 
necessary, to provide consistency with current year disclosures. 

e) Presentation and Rounding of Amounts 

Amounts in the financial statements and notes to the financial statements are presented in 
Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

f) Changes in Accounting Policies 

There have been no changes to accounting policies adopted in 2013-14 as a result of 
management decisions.  

g) Accounting Judgments and Estimates  

The preparation of the financial report requires the making of judgments and estimates that 
affect the recognised amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying  
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values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods. 

Judgments and estimates that have significant effects on the financial statements are 
disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Notes that include significant 
judgments and estimates are: 

• Employee Benefits – Note 2(q) and Note 7 and 11: Non-current liabilities in respect of 
employee benefits are measured as the present value of estimated future cash outflows 
based on the appropriate Government bond rate, estimates of future salary and wage 
levels and employee periods of service.  

• Allowance for Impairment Losses – Note 2(o), Note 9: Receivables and Note 13: Financial 
Instruments. 

• Commitments – Note 14. 

h) Goods and Services Tax 

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax 
(GST), except where the amount of GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not 
recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO). In these circumstances the GST is recognised 
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. 

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST 
recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables in the 
Balance Sheet. 

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis. The GST components of 
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which are recoverable from or 
payable to the ATO, are classified as operating cash flows. Commitments and contingencies 
are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable or payable unless otherwise specified. 

i) Income Recognition 

Income encompasses both revenue and gains. 

Income is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, exclusive of the amount 
of GST. Exchanges of goods or services of the same nature and value without any cash 
consideration being exchanged are not recognised as income. 
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Appropriation 
Output appropriation is the operating payment to each agency for the outputs they provide 
and is calculated as the net cost of agency outputs after taking into account funding from 
agency income. It does not include any allowance for major non-cash costs such as 
depreciation.  

Commonwealth appropriation follows from the Intergovernmental Agreement on Federal 
Financial Relations, resulting in Specific Purpose Payments (SPPs) and National Partnership 
(NP) payments being made by the Commonwealth Treasury to state treasuries, in a manner 
similar to arrangements for GST payments. These payments are received by the Department 
of Treasury and Finance on behalf of the Central Holding Authority and then on-passed to the 
relevant agencies as Commonwealth appropriation. 

Revenue in respect of appropriations is recognised in the period in which the agency gains 
control of the funds. 

Sale of Goods 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised (net of returns, discounts and allowances) when: 

• the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have transferred to the buyer; 

• the agency retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually 
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; 

• the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; 

• it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 
agency; and 

• the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 

Audit Costs Recovered 
Revenue from rendering services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the 
contract. The revenue is recognised when: 

• the amount of revenue, stage of completion and transaction costs incurred can be reliably 
measured; and 

• it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 
entity. 

• All invoices issued are recognised at the amount receivable as they are due for settlement 
in no more than 30 days.  Accrued revenue is recognised when a chargeable audit service 
has been provided to an agency and the Office has yet to issue an invoice. 
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Goods and Services Received Free of Charge 
Goods and services received free of charge are recognised as revenue when a fair value can be 
reliably determined and the resource would have been purchased if it had not been donated. 
Use of the resource is recognised as an expense. 

j) Repairs and Maintenance Expense 

Funding is received for repairs and maintenance works associated with agency assets as part 
of output revenue. Costs associated with repairs and maintenance works on agency assets are 
expensed as incurred.  

k) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 

All depreciable assets controlled by the Office were fully depreciated at the commencement 
of the 2010/11 financial year and the assets were subsequently written off.  The Office does 
not have any depreciable or amortizable asset and therefore did not record any depreciation 
or amortisation during the reporting periods. 

l) Cash and Deposits 

For the purposes of the Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement, cash includes cash on 
hand, cash at bank and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are highly liquid short-term 
investments that are readily convertible to cash. Cash at bank includes monies held in the 
Accountable Officer’s Trust Account (AOTA) that are ultimately payable to the beneficial 
owner – refer also to Note 17. 

m)   Receivables 

Receivables include accounts receivable and other receivables and are recognised at fair value 
less any allowance for impairment losses.  

The allowance for impairment losses represents the amount of receivables the agency 
estimates are likely to be uncollectible and are considered doubtful. Analysis of the age of the 
receivables that are past due as at the reporting date are disclosed in an aging schedule under 
credit risk in Note 13 Financial Instruments. Reconciliation of changes in the allowance 
accounts is also presented.   

The Office has limited credit risk exposure in respect of its dealings with credit worthy 
organisations and is therefore not required to estimate or carry an allowance for impairment.  
Accounts receivable are generally settled within 30 days and other receivables within 30 days 
– refer also to 2(v) and Note 13. 

n) Property, Plant and Equipment 
Acquisitions 
All items of property, plant and equipment with a cost, or other value, equal to or greater than 
$10,000 are recognised in the year of acquisition and depreciated as outlined below. Items of  
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property, plant and equipment below the $10,000 threshold are expensed in the year of 
acquisition.  

The construction cost of property, plant and equipment includes the cost of materials and 
direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads. 

The Office had nil property, plant and equipment acquisitions during the reporting periods. 

o) Revaluations and Impairment 
Revaluation of Assets 
Subsequent to initial recognition, assets belonging to the following classes of non-current 
assets are revalued with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of these 
assets does not differ materially from their fair value at reporting date:  

• land; 

• buildings; 

• infrastructure assets; 

• heritage and cultural assets; 

• biological assets; and 

• intangibles. 

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation, which is deemed to equate 
to fair value. 

The Office held only financial assets during the period of consideration; it did not purchase or 
own any non-financial assets during this time and was not required to revalue assets in 
accordance with this note. 

Impairment of Assets 
An asset is said to be impaired when the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount.  

Non-current physical and intangible agency assets are assessed for indicators of impairment 
on an annual basis. If an indicator of impairment exists, the agency determines the asset’s 
recoverable amount. The asset’s recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the 
asset’s depreciated replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell. Any amount by which 
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment 
loss. 
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Impairment losses are recognised in the Comprehensive Operating Statement. They are 
disclosed as an expense unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount. Where the asset is 
measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation 
surplus for that class of asset to the extent that an available balance exists in the asset 
revaluation surplus. 

In certain situations, an impairment loss may subsequently be reversed. Where an impairment 
loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the 
Comprehensive Operating Statement as income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued 
amount, in which case the impairment reversal results in an increase in the asset revaluation 
surplus.  

The Office held only financial assets during the period of consideration; it did not purchase or 
own any non-financial assets during this time and was therefore not required to impair any 
assets in accordance with this note – refer to Note 9. 

Leased Assets 
Leases under which the agency assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
an asset are classified as finance leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Finance Leases 
The Office was not a party to any finance lease arrangements in the reporting period. 

Operating Leases 
Operating lease payments made at regular intervals throughout the term are expensed when 
the payments are due.   

The Office has an operating lease that requires monthly payments over a period of five years.  
Those payments commenced in December 2010 and will conclude in December 2015.  Refer 
to Note 14.   

p) Payables 

Liabilities for accounts payable and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair 
value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or 
not billed to the agency. Accounts payable are normally settled within 30 days – refer also to 
2(v) and Note 13.  

q) Employee Benefits  

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering 
services up to the reporting date. These benefits include wages and salaries and recreation 
leave. Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, recreation leave and other employee 
benefit liabilities that fall due within twelve months of reporting date are classified as current 
liabilities and are measured at amounts expected to be paid. Non-current employee benefit  
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liabilities that fall due after twelve months of the reporting date are measured at present 
value, calculated using the Government long-term bond rate. 

No provision is made for sick leave, which is non-vesting, as the anticipated pattern of future 
sick leave to be taken is less than the entitlement accruing in each reporting period.  

Employee benefit expenses are recognised on a net basis in respect of the following 
categories: 

• wages and salaries, non-monetary benefits, recreation leave, sick leave and other leave 
entitlements; and 

• other types of employee benefits. 

As part of the financial management framework, the Central Holding Authority assumes the 
long service leave liabilities of Government agencies, including the Office and as such no long 
service leave liability is recognised in agency financial statements.  

r) Superannuation 

Employees' superannuation entitlements are provided through the: 

• Northern Territory Government and Public Authorities Superannuation Scheme (NTGPASS); 

• Commonwealth Superannuation Scheme (CSS); or 

• non-government employee-nominated schemes for those employees commencing on or 
after 10 August 1999.  

The agency makes superannuation contributions on behalf of its employees to the Central 
Holding Authority or non-government employee-nominated schemes. Superannuation 
liabilities related to government superannuation schemes are held by the Central Holding 
Authority and as such are not recognised in agency financial statements.  

s) Contributions by and Distributions to Government 

The agency may receive contributions from Government where the Government is acting as 
owner of the agency. Conversely, the agency may make distributions to Government. In 
accordance with the Financial Management Act and Treasurer’s Directions, certain types of 
contributions and distributions, including those relating to administrative restructures, have 
been designated as contributions by, and distributions to, Government. These designated 
contributions and distributions are treated by the agency as adjustments to equity. 

The Statement of Changes in Equity provides additional information in relation to 
contributions by, and distributions to, Government. 
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t) Commitments 

Disclosures in relation to capital and other commitments, including lease commitments are 
shown at Note 14. 

Commitments are those contracted as at 30 June where the amount of the future 
commitment can be reliably measured.   

The Office did not have any capital commitments and includes information pertaining to other 
commitments (Note 14(i) to (ii) and operating lease commitments at Note 14(iii)). 

u) Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and liabilities are 
recognised on the Balance Sheet when the agency becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument.  

The Office’s financial instruments constituted only of cash and deposits, receivables and 
payables during the financial periods under consideration and no other category of financial 
instruments was held. 

Exposure to interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit risk, price risk and liquidity risk 
arise in the normal course of activities. The agency’s investments, loans and placements, and 
borrowings are predominantly managed through the NTTC and TIO adopting strategies to 
minimise the risk. Derivative financial arrangements are also utilised to manage financial risks 
inherent in the management of these financial instruments.  

These arrangements include swaps, forward interest rate agreements and other hedging 
instruments to manage fluctuations in interest or exchange rates. The Office did not have any 
investments, loans, placements, borrowings or derivatives during the reporting period; 
accordingly it had limited risk exposure. 

Classification of Financial Instruments 

AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures requires financial instruments to be classified and 
disclosed within specific categories depending on their nature and purpose.  

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: 

• financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; 

• held-to-maturity investments; 

• loans and receivables; and 

• available-for-sale financial assets. 
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Financial liabilities are classified into the following categories: 

• financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and 

• financial liabilities at amortised cost. 

Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 

Financial instruments are classified as at FVTPL when the instrument is either held for trading 
or is designated as at FVTPL.  

An instrument is classified as held for trading if it is: 

• acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near 
term with an intention of making a profit; or 

• part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for 
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 

• a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging 
instrument. 

A financial instrument may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: 

• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or 

• the instrument forms part of a group of financial instruments, which is managed and its 
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk 
management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided 
internally on that basis; or 

• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and AASB 139 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the contract to be 
designated as at FVTPL. 

Held-to-Maturity Investments 

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates 
that the entity has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity investments. Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method less impairment, with revenue recognised on an effective yield 
basis. 

Loans and Receivables 

Non-derivative financial instruments – refer to Note 2 (m) Note 9 and Note 13. 
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Available-for-Sale Financial Assets 

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets, principally equity 
securities that are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as any of the three 
preceding categories. After initial recognition available-for-sale securities are measured at fair 
value with gains or losses being recognised as a separate component of equity until the 
investment is de-recognised or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which 
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is recognised in the 
Comprehensive Operating Statement.  The Office had nil assets in this category. 

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 

Amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method.  The Office had nil assets in 
this category. 

Derivatives 

The agency enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to 
interest rate risk. The agency does not speculate on trading of derivatives. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered in 
to and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting 
gain or loss is recognised in the Comprehensive Operating Statement immediately unless the 
derivative is designated and qualifies as an effective hedging instrument, in which event, the 
timing of the recognition in the Comprehensive Operating Statement depends on the nature 
of the hedge relationship. Application of hedge accounting will only be available where 
specific designation and effectiveness criteria are satisfied.  

The Office had nil assets in this category. 

Netting of Swap Transactions 

The agency, from time to time, may facilitate certain structured finance arrangements, where 
a legally recognised right to set-off financial assets and liabilities exists, and the Territory 
intends to settle on a net basis. Where these arrangements occur, the revenues and expenses 
are offset and the net amount is recognised in the Comprehensive Operating Statement.  The 
Office had nil assets in this category. 

Note 13 provides additional information on financial instruments.  

v) Fair Value Measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

Fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.  
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The highest and best use takes into account the use of the asset that is physically possible, 
legally permissible and financially feasible. 

When measuring fair value, the valuation techniques used maximise the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are used 
to the extent that sufficient relevant and reliable observable inputs are not available for 
similar assets/liabilities. 

Observable inputs are publicly available data that are relevant to the characteristics of the 
assets/liabilities being valued. Observable inputs used by the agency include, but are not 
limited to, published sales data for land and general office buildings. 

Unobservable inputs are data, assumptions and judgments that are not available publicly, but 
are relevant to the characteristics of the assets/liabilities being valued. Such inputs include 
internal agency adjustments to observable data to take account of particular and potentially 
unique characteristics/functionality of assets/liabilities and assessments of physical condition 
and remaining useful life.  

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the following fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used: 

Level 1 – inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2 – inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

Level 3 – inputs are unobservable. 

Refer to Note 13 for details.  
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3. Comprehensive Operating Statement by Output Group 

      
Audit & Reviews  

   
Note 2014 

 
2013  

               
INCOME 

    
   

Appropriation 
    

   

 
Output 

  
3,523,000 

 
3,090,000  

Sales of goods and services 
 

5 567,736 
 

574,234  
Goods and services received free of 
charge 

 
4 223,290 

 
220,027  

TOTAL INCOME 
 

3 4,314,026 
 

3,884,261  
OPERATING EXPENSES 

    
   

Employee expenses 
 

7 (847,354) 
 

(811,362)  
Administrative expenses 

    
   

 
Purchases of goods and services 

 
6 (3,168,442) 

 
(3,101,570)  

 
Repairs and maintenance 

  
(403) 

 
(116)  

 
Property Management 

  
(5,020) 

 
(5,841)  

 
Other administrative expenses 

  
(223,290) 

 
(220,027)  

TOTAL EXPENSES 
  

(4,244,509) 
 

(4,138,916)  
NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) 

  
69,517 

 
(254,655)  

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
    

   
Changes in accounting policies 

  
                 -    

 
                 -     

Changes of prior period errors 
  

                 -    
 

                 -     

    
  

 
   

COMPREHENSIVE RESULT 
  

69,517 
 

(254,655)  
 

4 GOODS AND SERVICES RECEIVED FREE OF CHARGE 

 
Corporate and Information Services 223,290 

 
220,027  

  
223,290 

 
220,027  
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Note 
 

2014 
 

2013 
          

     5 AUDIT COSTS RECOVERED 

   
      

 

Batchelor Institute of Indigenous Tertiary Education 49,911 
 

49,304       

 

Charles Darwin University 138,355 
 

135,758       

 

Darwin Waterfront Corporation 37,397 
 

32,485       

 

Department of Business 23,813 
 

6,279       

 

Department of Corporate and Information Services - 
 

9,177       

 

Department of Education and Children's Services - 
 

15,850       

 

Department of Health 29,205 
 

-       

 

Department of Local Government 5,069 
 

10,400       

 

Department of Transport 23,640 
 

27,491       

 

Department of Treasury and Finance 11,216 
 

20,368       

 

Desert Knowledge Australia 4,235 
 

-       

 

Menzies School of Health Research 26,536 
 

34,806       

 

NT Build  16,810 
 

14,350       

 

NT Legal Aid Commission 22,150 
 

29,218       

 

NT Major Events Company Pty Ltd 23,544 
 

34,950       

 

Power and Water Corporation 41,663 
 

33,162       

 

Territory Insurance Office 114,192 
 

120,636       
           

  
567,736 

 
574,234       

6 PURCHASE OF GOODS AND SERVICES 
    

 

The net surplus/(deficit) has been arrived at after 
charging the following major operational expenses: 

   

 

Authorised Auditors Fees 

 
3,084,974 

 
2,994,412 

 

Audit Expense 

 
11,158 

 
14,130 

 

Recruitment 

 
10,994 

 
171 

 

Training and Study 

 
8,593 

 
16,215 

 

Property Management 

 
5,020 

 
5,841 

 

Consultants - Other 

 
662 

 
7,690 

 

Repairs and Maintenance 

 
403 

 
117 

 

Official Duty Fares 

 
375 

 
6,172 

 

Document Production 

 
- 

 
2,462 
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Note 
  

2014 
 

2013 
            

      7 PERSONNEL EXPENSE 
    

 

The net surplus/(deficit) has been arrived at after 
charging the following major personnel expenses: 

   

 

Salaries 

 
583,959 

 
575,782 

 

Recreation Leave 

 
107,609 

 
77,619 

 

Payroll Tax (2) 
43,191 

 
41,736 

 

ECO Compulsory Super  
28,818 

 
32,310 

 

Other Benefits (1) 
27,764 

 
26,600 

 

Employer Compulsory Super  
23,133 

 
21,577 

 

Fringe Benefits Tax 

 
17,452 

 
18,341 

 

Higher Duties Allowance 

 
9,972 

 
10,032 

 

Recreation Leave Loading 

 
3,917 

 
6,117 

 

NT Allowance 

 
957 

 
957 

 

Other Allowances 

 
582 

 
291 

      
   

847,354 
 

811,362 

            
 

(1) Includes voluntary salary sacrifice and associated FBT 
             

 
(2) Includes On-Cost Expense 

    
     

 

8 CASH AND DEPOSITS 
     

       
 

Cash at Bank 
  

291,252 
 

247,119 

       
 

Cash on Hand 
  

200 
 

200 

       
 

Total Cash and Deposits 
  

291,452 
 

247,319 
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Note 
   

2014 
 

2013 
              

       9 RECEIVABLES 
                             CURRENT  

    

 

Accounts Receivable 

  
63,045 

 
118,034 

 

Less:  

     

 

    Allowance for Impairment Losses 
 

                -    
 

                -    

 

Accrued Revenue 

  
- 

 
82,205 

 

GST Receivable 

  
25,971 

 
40,142 

 
Total Receivables 

  
89,016 

 
240,381 

 

 

     10 PAYABLES 
   

 
Accounts Payable 1,087 

 
138,789 

 
Credit Card Control 1,964 

 
1,342 

 
Accrued Expenses - Operational Expenditure 14,058 

 
54,122 

 
Accrued Expenses - Employee Expenses 21,401 

 
18,179 

 
Accrued Expenses - Audit Fees 11,158 

 
13,000 

     
 

Total Payables 49,668 
 

225,432 

 

  



 
 

 

 

80 2013-14 Annual Report 

NORTHERN TERRITORY AUDITOR-GENERAL’S OFFICE 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

Note   2014 
 

2013 

  
 $  

 
 $  

11 PROVISIONS 
      CURRENT 
      Employee Benefits 
   

 
Recreation Leave 71,271 

 
64,077 

 
Leave Loading 7,492 

 
6,623 

 
Other Provisions (a) 24,143 

 
25,414 

        NON CURRENT 
      Employee Benefits 
   

 
Recreation Leave 47,898 

 
55,593 

   Total Provisions 150,804 
 

150,003 

        Reconciliations of Provisions (a) 
   

 
Balance as at 1 July 23,710 

 
22,892 

 
Additional Provisions Recognised 590 

 
2,945 

 
Reductions Arising from Payments (157) 

 
(423) 

 
Balance as at 30 June 24,143 

 
25,415 

     

 

The Office employed 5 employees as at 30 June 2014 
(5 employees as at 30 June 2013). 

 

  

 

 

     Other Provisions (a) 
   

 
Employer Superannuation Contribution 12,622 

 
12,778 

 
FBT 3,378 

 
4,690 

 
Payroll Tax On Costs 8,143 

 
7,946 

  
24,143 

 
25,415 
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Note   2014 
 

2013 
12 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT  $  

 
 $  

          
 

Reconciliation of Cash 
   

 
The total of agency 'Cash and deposits' of  291,452 

 
247,319 

 
recorded in the Balance Sheet is  consistent with that 

   
 

recorded as 'Cash' in the Cash Flow Statement 
        

 
Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) to Net 

   
 

Cash From Operating Activities 
        

 
Net Surplus / (Deficit) 69,517 

 
(254,655) 

     
 

Non-cash items: 
   

 
Depreciation and amortisation               -    

 
              -    

 
Assets write-offs / write-downs               -    

 
              -    

     
 

Changes in assets and liabilities 
   

 
Decrease / (Increase) in receivables 151,364 

 
(30,635) 

 
Decrease / (Increase) in prepayments (82) 

 
7,832 

 
Decrease / (Increase) in equity - 

 
170,000 

 
(Decrease) / Increase in payables (178,986) 

 
151,991 

 
(Decrease) / Increase in provision for employee benefits 11,286 

 
13,585 

 
(Decrease) / Increase in current provisions (1,271) 

 
2,522 

 
(Decrease) / Increase in non-current provisions (7,695) 

 
2,647 

     
 

Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities 44,133 
 

63,287 

        Reconciliation of Cash 
   

     
     

 

Balance as at 1 July 247,319 
 

184,032 

 
Net Surplus / (Deficit) 69,517 

 
(254,655) 

 
Decrease / (Increase) in Assets and Liabilities (25,384) 

 
317,942 

 
Balance as at 30 June 291,452 

 
247,319 
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Note 

                    
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

            
 

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a  

 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments held by the  

 
Office include cash and deposits, receivables, payables and finance leases. The  

 
Office has limited exposure to financial risks as discussed below. 

 

 
 

 

a) Categorisation of Financial Instruments 
      Carrying amounts of the Office's financial assets  
      and liabilities by category are disclosed in the table 

      below: 
        

 
          

  
   

 
2014 

 
2013 

 Financial Assets 
 

   
       Cash and deposits 

 
   

 
291,452 

 
247,319 

   Accounts Receivable 
 

   
 

63,046 
 

118,034 
 Financial Liabilities 

 
   

       Payables 
 

   
 

3,050 
 

140,131 
 
 

b) Credit Risk 

 The Office has limited credit risk exposure (risk of default).  In respect of any dealings with organisations external 
to Government, the Office has adopted a policy of only dealing with credit worthy organisations and obtaining 
sufficient collateral or other security where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from 
defaults. 

 The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, 
represents the agency's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral or 
other security obtained.   
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Note 
                    

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS – Cont. 
      

Receivables 
                 Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that exposure to bad debts is not significant. 

 
A reconciliation and ageing analysis of receivables is presented below: 
 

    
Internal receivables 

   

Ageing of 
Receivables 

 

Ageing of 
Impaired 
Receivables 

 

Net 
Receivables 

 

2013/14 
        

 
             Not overdue  

   
               -    

 
                  -    

 
              -     

             Total 
   

               -    
 

                  -    
 

              -     
          
          

    

Ageing of 
Receivables 

 

Ageing of 
Impaired 
Receivables 

 

Net 
Receivables 

 

2012/13 
        

 
             Not overdue 

   
               -    

 
                  -    

 
              -     

             Total 
   

               -    
 

                  -    
 

              -     
          

External receivables 

   

Ageing of 
Receivables 

 

Ageing of 
Impaired 
Receivables 

 

Net 
Receivables 

 

2013/14 
        

 
             Not overdue 

   
63,045 

 
                  -    

 
63,045  

             Total 
   

63,045 
 

                  -    
 

63,045  
          

         
 

          

    

Ageing of 
Receivables 

 

Ageing of 
Impaired 
Receivables 

 

Net 
Receivables 

 

2012/13 
        

 
             Not overdue 

   
118,034 

 
                  -    

 
118,034  

             Total 
   

118,034 
 

                  -    
 

118,034  
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Note 
                    

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS – Cont. 
      

c) Liquidity Risk 
               Liquidity risk is the risk that the Office will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.   

The agency's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities  
when they fall due 

          The following tables detail the Office's remaining contractual maturity for its financial assets and liabilities.   
It should be noted that these values are undiscounted, and consequently totals may not reconcile to the carrying  
amounts presented in the Balance Sheet. 
 
 

       
  

          

        
  

2014 Maturity Analysis for financial assets and liabilities 
  

   

Non-
Interest 
Bearing 

 
Total 

 

Weighted 
Average   

   Financial Assets 
       

  
     Cash and deposits 

  
291,452 

 
291,452 

 
0%   

     Accounts Receivable 
  

63,045 
 

63,045 
 

0%   
   Total Financial Assets 

  
354,497 

 
354,497 

 
0%   

             Financial Liabilities 
       

  
      Payables 

  
3,050 

 
3,050 

 
0%   

   Total Financial Liabilities 
  

3,050 
 

3,050 
 

0%   
 

       
  

          2013 Maturity Analysis for financial assets and liabilities 
  

   

Non-
Interest 
Bearing 

 
Total 

 

Weighted 
Average   

   Financial Assets 
       

  
     Cash and deposits 

  
247,319 

 
247,319 

 
0%   

     Accounts Receivable 
  

118,034 
 

118,034 
 

0%   
   Total Financial Assets 

  
365,353 

 
365,353 

 
0%   

             Financial Liabilities 
       

  
      Payables 

  
140,131 

 
140,131 

 
0%   

   Total Financial Liabilities 
  

140,131 
 

140,131 
 

0%   
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Note 
                    

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Cont. 
     d) Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of  
changes in market prices.  It comprises interest rate risk, price risk and currency risk. 

  i.  Interest Rate Risk 
The Office is not exposed to interest rate risk as agency financial assets and financial liabilities are non-interest bearing.   
Finance lease arrangements are established on a fixed interest rate and as such do not expose the Office to interest rate risk. 
 ii.  Price Risk 
The Office is not exposed to price risk as the Office does not hold units in unit trusts. 

 iii.  Currency Rate Risk 
The Office is not exposed to currency risk as the Office does not hold borrowings denominated in foreign currencies  
or transactional currency exposures arising from purchases in a foreign currency. 
e) Net Fair Value 
The fair value of financial instruments is estimated using various methods. These methods are classified into the  
following levels:  
Level 1 – derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 – derived from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable directly or indirectly. 
Level 3 – derived from inputs not based on observable market data. 
 
2014 Maturity Analysis for financial assets and liabilities 

      

 

Total Carrying 
Amount 

 

Net 
Fair 
Value 
Level 1 

 

Net Fair Value 
Level 2 

 

Net 
Fair 
Value 
Level 3 

 

Net Fair Value 
Total 

   Financial Assets 
         

     Cash and deposits 291,452 
 

            
-    

 
291,452 

 

            
-    

 
291,452 

     Accounts Receivable 63,045 
 

            
-    

 
63,045 

 

            
-    

 
63,045 

   Total Financial Assets 354,497 
 

            
-    

 
354,497 

 

            
-    

 
354,497 

             Financial Liabilities 
         

      Payables 3,050 
 

            
-    

 
3,050 

 

            
-    

 
3,050 

   Total Financial Liabilities 3,050 
 

            
-    

 
3,050 

 

            
-    

 
3,050 

2013 Maturity Analysis for financial assets and liabilities 
      

 

Total Carrying 
Amount 

 

Net 
Fair 
Value 
Level 1 

 

Net Fair Value 
Level 2 

 

Net 
Fair 
Value 
Level 3 

 

Net Fair Value 
Total 

   Financial Assets 
         

     Cash and deposits 247,319 
 

            
-    

 
247,319 

 

            
-    

 
247,319 

     Accounts Receivable 118,034 
 

            
-    

 
118,034 

 

            
-    

 
118,034 

   Total Financial Assets 365,353 
 

            
-    

 
365,353 

 

            
-    

 
365,353 

             Financial Liabilities 
         

          
      Payables 140,131 

 

            
-    

 
140,131 

 

            
-    

 
140,131 

          
   Total Financial Liabilities 140,131 

 

            
-    

 
140,131 

 

            
-    

 
140,131 



 
 

 

 

86 2013-14 Annual Report 

 
NORTHERN TERRITORY AUDITOR-GENERAL’S OFFICE 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

  
2014 2013 

Note 
 

Internal External Internal External 
            

      14 COMMITMENTS 
    

      (i)  Forward Estimates of Authorised Auditors Expenditure  

The actual number of hours acquired from  
   

 
accounting firms in each year has  historically  

   
 

exceeded the number of hours specified by  
   

 
contract.  The  value of services that are expected 

   
 

to be acquired from  accounting firms for the period 
   

 
covered by the forward estimates is as follows:- 

   
 

 
Within one year               -    3,286,848                  -    2,927,440 

 
Later than one year - not later than three years                  -    12,929,650                  -    12,051,640 

  
                 -    16,216,498                  -    14,979,080 

      The Office relies upon the use of auditors who are drawn from 
private accounting firms. The current contract with these firms 
will expire on 31 December 2014.  The minimum legal will expire 
on commitment to accounting firms for the remaining term of 
the current contract is $1,093,425 (2013: $3,434,452). 
 
(ii)  Audit Contract Commitment  

    The Office relies upon the use of interstate auditors 
    to ensure there is no conflict of interest when auditing 
    the Office’s Financial Statements.  A three year 
    contract is in place with Bentleys SA Pty Ltd and the 
    current contract will expire on 31 December 2015.   
    

 
Within one year                  -    13,390                  -    13,000 

 
Later than one year - not later than five years                  -    13,792                  -    27,182 

  
                 -    27,182                  -    40,182 
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2014 2013 

Note 
 

Internal External Internal External 
        

    14 COMMITMENTS Cont. 
    

    (ii)  Operating Lease Commitment 
    The Agency leases items of plant and equipment  

    under non-cancellable operating leases.  A  
    Technology lease is due to expire 15 December 2015.   
    Future operating lease commitments not recognised  
    as liabilities are payable as follows:   
    

 
Within one year                  -    1,971                  -    1,971 

 
Later than one year - not later than five years                  -    985                  -    2,956 

  
                 -    2,956                  -    4,927 

 

15. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

 
(a) Contingent liabilities 

 

The Office had no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2014 or 30 
June 2013. 

  
 

(b) Contingent assets 

 
The Office had no contingent liabilities or contingent 

 
assets as at 30 June 2014 or 30 June 2013. 

 

16. Events Subsequent to Balance Date 

 
No events have arisen between the end of the financial year 

 
and the date of this report that require adjustment to, or  

 
disclosure in, these financial statements. 

 

17. Accountable Officer’s Trust Account 

 
The Office does not maintain an Accountable Officer's  

 
Trust Account. 
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18. Write-Offs, Postponements, Waivers, Gifts and Ex-Gratia Payments 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

2014 
 

No. of 
Trans.   2013 

 

No. of 
Trans. 

 
  $000             $000   

            

 

Write-offs, Postponements and Waivers Under the Financial 
Management Act               

 
Represented by: 

         

 
Amounts written off, postponed and waived by Delegates -  -   -  - 

 
Total Written Off, Postponed and Waived by Delegates       -    -   -   - 

 
 

         
 

 
         

 

19. Schedule of Territory Items 

 

 
The Office had no Territory items for this year. 
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Glossary and Acronyms 
  
ATO Australian Taxation Office 

 
Authorised Auditor (AA) A person authorised or appointed under the Audit Act to perform an audit. 

 
CCC Corporate credit card 

 
Controlled entity TD 2.4.9 “A controlling interest of the Territory or and Agency, being the 

capacity of the Territory to influence the activities of an entity” This may 
be through influence of governing bodies, voting rights, equity share or 
virtue of statute. 
 

DCIS Department of Corporate Information Services 
 

DCIS SFOC Department of Corporate Information Services, Services Received Free of 
Charge. 
 

DoI Department of Infrastructure 
 

EIMS Electronic Invoice Management System 
 

FTE 
 

Full time equivalent employee.  Recognised method of unit that indicates 
the value of workload of an employee comparable to that of others in 
various work contexts.  
 

FVTPL Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 
 

LTF Ledger Transfer Facility 
 

NTPS Northern Territory Public Sector 
 

NTTC Northern Territory Treasury Corporation 
 

PRINCIPAL AUDITOR (PA) Principal Auditors are responsible to the Auditor-General for managing the 
delivery of the in-house and external audit services to meet the 
requirements of the Audit Act and other Acts of Parliament.  
 

SLA Service Level Agreement 
 

TIO Territory Insurance Office 
 

TRIM Tower Records Information Management.  Recognised NTPS system for 
storing records.  
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Contact Details 
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